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¨ Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)
 

¨ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
 

¨ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))
 
  



Item 7.01 Regulation FD Information

Attached as Exhibit 99.1 is a PowerPoint presentation prepared by IDI, Inc. (the “Company”) regarding the Company’s proposed acquisition of Fluent,
Inc. (“Fluent”) pursuant to the previously announced Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of November 16, 2015. Exhibit 99.1 is furnished pursuant to
this Item 7.01 and shall not be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any of the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

 
Item 8.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

The Company is providing, through the filing of this Current Report on Form 8-K, certain financial information regarding Fluent and certain pro forma
financial information regarding the Company and Fluent. The Company’s proposed acquisition of Fluent has not been consummated and remains subject to
certain customary closing conditions.

 
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(d) Exhibits

The following exhibits are furnished as part of this report:
 
Exhibit

No.   Exhibit Description

23.1   Consent of EisnerAmper LLP

23.2   Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

99.1   Power Point presentation regarding the proposed acquisition of Fluent, Inc.

99.2   Fluent, Inc. audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014.

99.3   Fluent, Inc. audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

99.4   Fluent, Inc. unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

99.5
  

IDI, Inc. unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 30, 2015 and unaudited pro forma condensed combined
statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the nine months ended September 30, 2015.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.
 

  IDI, Inc.

December 2, 2015   By:  /s/ Derek Dubner
  Name: Derek Dubner
  Title:  Co-CEO
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements Form S-8 (Nos. 333-177025, 333-188739, 333-194952, 333-206043) and
Form S-3 (Nos. 333-206402 and 333-205614) of IDI, Inc. (the “Company”) of our report dated April 27, 2015, on our audit of the consolidated balance sheet
of Fluent, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended which report is included in this Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company.

 
/s/ EISNERAMPER LLP

New York, New York
December 2, 2015



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
 

 (1) Registration Statements (Form S-3 No. 333-205614 and Form S-3 No. 333-206402) of IDI, Inc.,
 

 (2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-177025) pertaining to the SearchMedia Holdings Limited Amended and Restated 2008 Share
Incentive Plan,

 

 (3) Registration Statements (Form S-8 No. 333-188739 and Form S-8 No. 333-194952) pertaining to the Tiger Media, Inc. Amended and Restated
2008 Share Incentive Plan,

 

 (4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-206403) pertaining to the IDI, Inc. 2015 Stock Incentive Plan;

of our report dated June 24, 2014, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Fluent, Inc. and subsidiaries included in this Current Report on
Form 8-K.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
December 2, 2015



Exhibit 99.1
 

ID I F lu en t 

ID I to  A cq u ire F lu en t 

A p p ly in g  N ex t-G en eratio n  D ata A n aly tics to  H elp  Mark eters A cq u ire th eir B est C u sto m ers at S cale 
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F o rw ard -L o o k in g  S tatem en ts an d  N o n -G A A P  In fo rm atio n  

T h is p resen tatio n  is fo r in fo rm atio n al p u rp o ses o n ly  an d  d o es n o t co n stitu te an  o ffer to  sell, a so licitatio n  o f an  o ffer to  b u y , o r a reco m m en d atio n  to  p u rch ase an y  eq u ity , d eb t o r o th er fin an cial in stru m en ts o f ID I, In c. (“ID I” o r th e “C o m p an y ”) o r th e secu rities o f an y  o f ID I’s affiliates’ (as su ch  term  is d efin ed  u n d er th e U .S . F ed eral S ecu rities L aw s). 

T h is p resen tatio n  in clu d es fo rw ard -lo o k in g  statem en ts reg ard in g  ID I an d  its b u sin ess an d  p ro sp ects fo llo w in g  co m p letio n  o f th e p ro p o sed  acq u isitio n  o f F lu en t. T h is fo rw ard -lo o k in g  in fo rm atio n  is b ased  o n  assu m p tio n s an d  ex p ectatio n s w h ich , w h ile co n sid ered  reaso n ab le b y  ID I an d  its m an ag em en t as o f th e d ate o f th is p resen tatio n , are su b ject to  risk s, u n certain ties, an d  o th er facto rs th at m ay  cau se actu al resu lts an d  p erfo rm an ce to  m aterially  d iffer fro m  resu lts o r p erfo rm an ce ex p ressed  o r im p lied  b y  th e fo rw ard -lo o k in g  statem en ts. S u ch  risk s in clu d e, am o n g  o th ers, th e tim in g  to  co n su m m ate th e p ro p o sed  tran sactio n ; th e ab ility  to  fin an ce th e tran sactio n ; th e risk  th at a co n d itio n  to  clo sin g  o f th e p ro p o sed  tran sactio n  m ay  n o t b e satisfied  o r th at th e clo sin g  o f th e p ro p o sed  tran sactio n  m ig h t o th erw ise n o t o ccu r; th e risk  th at a reg u lato ry  ap p ro v al th at m ay  b e req u ired  fo r th e p ro p o sed  tran sactio n  is n o t o b tain ed  o r is o b tain ed  su b ject to  co n d itio n s th at are n o t an ticip ated ; th e d iv ersio n  o f m an ag em en t tim e o n  tran sactio n -related  issu es; ab ility  to  su ccessfu lly  in teg rate th e b u sin esses; risk  th at th e tran sactio n  an d  its an n o u n cem en t co u ld  h av e an  ad v erse effect o n  each  co m p an y ’s ab ility  to  retain  cu sto m ers an d  retain  an d  h ire k ey  p erso n n el; th e risk  th at an y  p o ten tial sy n erg ies fro m  th e tran sactio n  m ay  n o t b e fu lly  realized  o r m ay  tak e lo n g er to  realize th an  ex p ected , as w ell as th e ad d itio n al facto rs u n d er th e h ead in g  “F o rw ard -L o o k in g  S tatem en ts” an d  “R isk  F acto rs” in  th e C o m p an y ’s m o st recen tly  filed  A n n u al R ep o rt o n  F o rm  1 0 -K , its Q u arterly  R ep o rt o n  F o rm  1 0 -Q  fo r its fiscal q u arter en d ed  Ju n e 3 0 , 2 0 1 5  an d  th e C o m p an y ’s o th er filin g s w ith  th e S ecu rities an d  E x ch an g e C o m m issio n . ID I assu m es n o  o b lig atio n  to  u p d ate th e in fo rm atio n  in  th is p resen tatio n , ex cep t as o th erw ise req u ired  b y  law . Y o u  are cau tio n ed  n o t to  p lace u n d u e relian ce o n  th ese fo rw ard -lo o k in g  statem en ts, w h ich  sp eak  o n ly  as o f th e d ate h ereo f. 

T h is p resen tatio n  in clu d es certain  “N o n -G A A P ” fin an cial m easu res as d efin ed  b y  S E C  ru les. A s req u ired  b y  th e S E C , w e h av e p ro v id ed  a reco n ciliatio n  o f th o se m easu res to  th e m o st d irectly  co m p arab le G A A P  m easu res o n  th e R eg u latio n  G  as A p p en d ix  A  o f th is p resen tatio n . N o n -G A A P  fin an cial m easu res sh o u ld  b e co n sid ered  in  ad d itio n  to , b u t n o t as a su b stitu te fo r, rep o rted  G A A P  resu lts. 
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C o m p an y  O v erv iew s 

ID I (N Y S E  MK T : ID I) A n  in fo rm atio n  so lu tio n s p ro v id er strateg ically  p o sitio n ed  w ith in  th e em erg in g  d ata fu sio n  m ark et, d eliv erin g  o th erw ise u n attain ab le in sig h t in to  th e ev er-ex p an d in g  u n iv erse o f co n su m er- an d  b u sin ess-cen tric d ata. T h ro u g h  its p ro p rietary  lin k in g  tech n o lo g y , ad v an ced  sy stem s arch itectu re an d  m assiv e d ata rep o sito ry , ID I ad d resses th e rap id ly  g ro w in g  n eed  fo r actio n ab le in tellig en ce to  su p p o rt th e risk  m an ag em en t in d u stry , in clu d in g  th e fo llo w in g  p rim ary  u se cases: D u e d ilig en ce, R isk  assessm en t, F rau d  d etectio n  an d  p rev en tio n , A u th en ticatio n  an d  v erificatio n . A d d itio n ally , ID I’s cro ss-fu n ctio n al co re sy stem s an d  p ro cesses are d esig n ed  to  d eliv er p ro d u cts an d  so lu tio n s to  th e m ark etin g  in d u stry  an d  to  en ab le th e p u b lic an d  p riv ate secto rs to  lay er o u r so lu tio n s o v er th eir u n iq u e d ata sets, p ro v id in g  o th erw ise u n attain ab le in sig h t. 

F lu en t A n  in d u stry  lead er in  p eo p le-b ased  d ig ital m ark etin g  an d  cu sto m er acq u isitio n , serv in g  o v er 5 0 0  lead in g  co n su m er b ran d s an d  d irect m ark eters. F lu en t’s p ro p rietary  au d ien ce d ata an d  ro b u st ad -serv in g  tech n o lo g y  en ab les m ark eters to  acq u ire th eir b est cu sto m ers, w ith  p recisio n , at a m assiv e scale. L ev erag in g  co m p ellin g  co n ten t, 1 st-p arty  d ata, an d  real-tim e su rv ey  in teractio n  w ith  co n su m ers, F lu en t h as h elp ed  m ark eters acq u ire m illio n s o f n ew  cu sto m ers sin ce its in cep tio n . 

ID I 

ID I tech n o lo g y  an d  ex p erien ce is ex p ected  to  rap id ly  ad v an ce F lu en t to  its n ex t lo g ical stag e o f ev o lu tio n  –  b ig  d ata an aly tics to  su p p o rt co n su m er p ro filin g , seg m en tin g , an d  targ etin g  –  at m assiv e scale. 
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D eep  an d  E x p erien ced  L ead ersh ip  T eam s 

Majo r S h areh o ld er &  V ice-C h airm an  o f th e B o ard  (p o st-clo sin g ): P h illip  F ro st, M.D . 

D r. F ro st h as b een  th e C E O  an d  C h airm an  o f O P K O  H ealth  (N Y S E : O P K ) sin ce March  2 0 0 7 . H e serv ed  as C h airm an  o f th e B o ard  o f T ev a P h arm aceu ticals (N Y S E : T E V A ) fro m  March  2 0 1 0  to  D ecem b er 2 0 1 4 , an d  p rev io u sly  serv ed  as V ice C h airm an  fro m  Jan u ary  2 0 0 6 , w h en  T ev a acq u ired  IV A X  C o rp o ratio n . D r. F ro st h ad  serv ed  as C h airm an  o f th e B o ard  o f D irecto rs an d  C h ief E x ecu tiv e O fficer o f IV A X  sin ce 1 9 8 7 . H e w as n am ed  C h airm an  o f th e B o ard  o f L ad en b u rg  T h alm an n  F in an cial S erv ices In c. (N Y S E  MK T : L T S ) in  Ju ly  2 0 0 6 . 

ID I F o u n d er an d  E x ecu tiv e C h airm an : Mich ael B rau ser 

A n  in v esto r an d  o p erato r in  th e d ata fu sio n  m ark et sin ce its in fan cy , B rau ser h as b u ilt m ark etin g  lead in g  co m p an ies w ith  rev en u e to talin g  o v er $ 2  b illio n . A d d itio n ally , B rau ser h as fo u n d ed  an d  led  sev eral su ccessfu l d ig ital m ark etin g  co m p an ies. 

ID I 

ID I C o -C h ief E x ecu tiv e O fficer: D erek  D u b n er 

F o r 1 5  y ears, D u b n er w o rk ed  clo sely  w ith  th e late H an k  A sh er, th e creato r o f m ark et lead ers S eisin t an d  T L O  an d  o ften  referred  to  as 

“th e fath er o f d ata fu sio n ”. Mo st recen tly , D u b n er serv ed  as g en eral co u n sel o f T L O  fro m  in cep tio n  th ro u g h  th e sale o f su b stan tially  all o f th e assets to  T ran sU n io n  in  D ecem b er 2 0 1 3 . P rio r ro les in clu d e v ice p resid en t an d  asso ciate g ro u p  co u n sel at E q u ifax , g en eral co u n sel an d  ch ief co m p lian ce o fficer at N av ian t (acq u ired  b y  E q u ifax ) an d  co rp o rate co u n sel at S eisin t (acq u ired  b y  R eed  E lsev ier’s L ex isN ex is). 

ID I P resid en t an d  C h ief O p eratin g  O fficer: Jam es R eilly  

R eilly  h as serv ed  in  an  ex ecu tiv e m an ag em en t cap acity  w ith in  th e d ata fu sio n  in d u stry  fo r th e last six  y ears, w ith  o v er 1 5  y ears o f ex ecu tiv e ex p erien ce in  d ata m ark ets. Mo st recen tly , R eilly  serv ed  as an  ex ecu tiv e w ith  T L O  an d  w as resp o n sib le fo r b u ild in g  rev en u e fro m  start-u p  to  sale. A d d itio n ally , R eilly  w as resp o n sib le fo r all cu sto m er facin g  d ep artm en ts, th e co m p an y ’s strateg ic in itiativ es, an d  relatio n sh ip  m an ag em en t o f k ey  strateg ic p artn ers an d  d istrib u to rs. 

ID I C h ief S cien ce O fficer: O le P o u lsen  

P o u lsen  w as th e p rim ary  sy stem s arch itect o f lead in g  d ata fu sio n  p ro d u cts A ccu rin t (n o w  a L ex isN ex is o fferin g ) an d  T L O x p  (n o w  a 

T ran sU n io n  o fferin g ). T h e p reem in en t ex p ert in  th is field , P o u lsen ’s ex p erien ce, ex p ertise an d  p ro v en  tech n o lo g y  lead ersh ip  en ab les rap id  ex p an sio n  an d  an  ad v an ced  d eliv ery  p latfo rm . 

F lu en t 

R y an  S ch u lk e –  C E O  &  C o -F o u n d er 

P rio r to  fo u n d in g  F lu en t, S ch u lk e h ead ed  u p  P ro d u ct an d  D istrib u tio n  at C lash  Med ia an d  p lay ed  an  in stru m en tal ro le in  g ro w in g  its U S  b u sin ess. E arlier, h e h eld  p o sitio n s at Med iaWh iz H o ld in g s, an d  

In n o v atio n  A d s. 

Matt C o n lin  –  P resid en t &  C o -F o u n d er 

P rio r to  fo u n d in g  F lu en t, C o n lin  lau n ch ed  th e U S  d iv isio n  o f C lash  Med ia, w h ere h e g rew  an d  d ev elo p ed  a team  o f m o re th an  3 0  em p lo y ees acro ss 

2  o ffices an d  b u ilt a m u lti-m illio n  d o llar b u sin ess. 

S ean  C u llen  –  E V P , P ro d u ct &  T ech n o lo g y  

S p earh ead s th e d ev elo p m en t o f F lu en t’s v isio n ary  p ro d u ct an d  tech n o lo g y  ro ad m ap , an d  o v ersees th e ex ecu tio n  th ro u g h  th e m an ag em en t o f th e en g in eerin g , d esig n , p ro ject m an ag em en t, an d  p erfo rm an ce team s. B efo re F lu en t, C u llen  w o rk ed  at C lash  Med ia. 

Matt K o n cz –  E V P , Med ia &  D istrib u tio n  

R esp o n sib le fo r m an ag in g  F lu en t’s p ro p rietary  an d  th ird -p arty  d istrib u tio n  n etw o rk . H is p rim ary  fu n ctio n s are to  set an d  attain  v o lu m e, sp en d , an d  m arg in  targ ets, an d  n ew  m ed ia d isco v ery  effo rts. F o rm erly  w ith  C lash  Med ia an d  P lattfo rm  A d v ertisin g , w h ere h e h elp ed  b u ild  o u t th eir m ed ia b u y in g  an d  b u sin ess d ev elo p m en t team s. 
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Meet y o u r P o ten tial N ew  C u sto m er - Wh o  is sh e? 

Wh at m o tiv ates h er to  b u y ? 

Wh ere d o es sh e sh o p ? 

Wh ere is sh e fro m ? 

Wh at are h er fav o rite b ran d s? 
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Meet Jan e. 

With  F lu en t, b ran d s co n n ect w ith  real p eo p le, at a m assiv e scale… 

S ig n  u p  to  g et sp ecial sav in g s in  y o u r in b o x  

N A ME  Jan e L ew is 

E MA IL  jan e@g m ail.co m  

A D D R E S S  1 2 3  B ro ad w ay  

C IT Y  N ew  Y o rk  

S T A T E  N Y  

Z IP  1 0 0 0 1  

P H O N E  2 1 2  1 1 1  2 2 2 2  

I ag ree to  g ran t p erm issio n  to  sen d  m essag es. 

I u n d erstan d  I m ay  u n su b scrib e at an y  tim e. 

…an d  b u ild  ro b u st p ro files b y  lev erag in g  cu sto m izab le real-tim e su rv ey s 

A g e 

H o u seh o ld  In co m e 

C h ild ren  in  h o m e? 

B eh av io ral d riv ers 

F av o rite b ran d s 

Mo n th ly  g ro cery  sp en d  
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U ltim ately , receiv in g  d eep  an d  relev an t in sig h ts in to  each  in d iv id u al sh o p p er 

JA N E  L E WIS  

3 9  y ears o ld  

$ 7 5 ,0 0 0  H H I 

2  ch ild ren  in  h o m e 

$ 3 0 0  p er m o n th  g ro ceries 

iO S  u ser 

S h o p s at S h o p R ite 

Wh ite P lain s, N Y  

H ealth  co n scio u s p u rch aser 

jan e@g m ail.co m  

ID I +  F lu en t S Y N E R G Y  

ID I 

ID I’s b ig  d ata an aly tics are ex p ected  to  en ab le F lu en t to  g lean  g reater in sig h t o n  co n su m ers b y  lev erag in g  a m assiv e rep o sito ry  o f p u b lic an d  p ro p rietary  d ata. 
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E m ail h as b eco m e th e d ig ital cu rren cy  fo r o m n i-ch an n el m ark etin g  

T h e F lu en t p latfo rm  g iv es b ran d s to u ch p o in ts in to  ev ery  m ark etin g  ch an n el… 
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F lu en t d o es th is at scale fo r th e w o rld ’s sm artest m ark eters 

Ju st a few  ex am p les o f th e o v er 5 0 0  b ran d s serv ed  b y  F lu en t: 

WE S T E R N  U N IO N  

H E A R S T  

ab o u t.co m  

T im eIn c. 

S MA R T  B A L A N C E ®  

C H eap flig h tsT M 

.co m  

S H O E  C A R N IV A L  
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F lu en t D eliv ers S calab le, R O I-P o sitiv e D ig ital Mark etin g  S o lu tio n s T h ro u g h  D ata an d  T ech n o lo g y -D riv en  A u d ien ce T arg etin g  

L ead in g  A d v ertisers A cro ss Mu ltip le In d u stry  V erticals 

C P G  R etail H ealth  F in an ce A u to  F lu en t 

C u sto m  A u d ien ce T arg etin g  

C u sto m er C o n v ersio n  

D eep  A u d ien ce In sig h ts 

C u sto m er R eten tio n  

P rem ier P u b lish er In v en to ry  A cro ss A ll C h an n els 

Mo b ile*  

D isp lay  

S o cial 

E m ail 

O fflin e / P artn er 

*  Mo b ile acco u n ts fo r 7 0 %  o f u sers 

S o lu tio n s P o w ered  B y  P ro p rietary  T ech n o lo g y  an d  D ata 

P ro p rietary  A d  S erv in g  T ech n o lo g y  

O R  

E x am p le S u rv ey  Q u estio n  

P ro m o tio n al O ffer # 1  

P ro m o tio n al O ffer # 2  

Massiv e D ata Wareh o u se 

1 st P arty  D ata o n  1 0 0 MM+  C o n su m ers 

1 .2 B N  S u rv ey  R esp o n ses in  2 0 1 4  

4 5 0 k  G ro ss D aily  S ig n u p s 
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V alu ab le D ata A ssets an d  E ffectiv e T arg etin g  o n  a Mass S cale 

B ig  D ata 

E th n o g rap h y  

B eh av io ral 

D em o g rap h ic 

Meta 

O w n ed  F irst-P arty  D ata 

1 0 0 MM+  R eco rd s 

2 2 MM v isit 5 x  o r m o re 

P recise A u d ien ce T arg etin g  

P ro p rietary  targ etin g  alg o rith m s an d  d y n am ic su rv ey  m o d u le m atch  co n su m ers w ith  th e m o st relev an t ad v ertisers, co n ten t, an d  m ed ia acro ss all d ev ices 

D ata n o t o n ly  p o w ers targ etin g , b u t is also  u sed  to  d ev elo p  lo o k -alik e p ro files b ased  o n  th e h ig h est co n v ertin g  cu sto m ers 

T h e co m b in atio n  is b est-in -class au d ien ce targ etin g  at scale an d  m ark et-lead in g  co n v ersio n  rates an d  R O I 

ID I +  F lu en t S Y N E R G Y  

ID I 

E x p erts o n  b ig  d ata sto rag e, lin k in g , an d  p ro cessin g , ID I is ex p ected  to  en ab le F lu en t to  m assiv ely  scale d ata assets, as w ell as lin k  d isp arate d atasets to  b etter lev erag e th ird  p arty  d ata an d  b u ild  m o re co m p lete co n su m er p ro files an d  stro n g er targ etin g , resu ltin g  in  sig n ifican tly  in creased  m o n etizatio n  o f d ata. 
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A u d ien ce T arg etin g  P ro d u ct F lo w  

R een g ag em en t v ia n ew  o ffers, co n ten t, &  th ird -p arty  

P aid  Med ia &  D istrib u tio n  O u tlets 

S o cial 

E m ail 

Mo b ile 

D isp lay  

O fflin e 

P artn ers 

P ro m o tio n s 

L o y alty  

R ew ard s 

S am p les 

O th er P ro m o tio n s 

D y n am ic S u rv ey  

T arg eted  / P req u alified  O ffer P ath  

C P A  

C P L  

C P I 

T h an k  y o u  P ag e 

C P C  

C P A  

A u d ien ce P o o l C reatio n  

F lu en t’s D ata Wareh o u se 

T rad itio n al D ata P ro d u cts 

T arg eted  cu sto m ers d eliv ered  to  ad v ertisers 
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L arg e Mark et O p p o rtu n ity  

F lu en t o p erates in  th e m assiv e, 

$ 4 9 .5 B N  U S  m ark etp lace (2 0 1 4 ) fo r d ig ital ad v ertisin g  

With in  th at, p erfo rm an ce-b ased  m ark etin g  rep resen ts a $ 3 2 .4 B N  m ark etp lace 

T o tal U .S . D ig ital A d  S p en d  in  2 0 1 4 : $ 4 9 .5 B N  

B y  A d  F o rm at 

C lassified s an d  D irecto ries 6 %  

L ead  G en eratio n  4 %  

Mo b ile 2 5 %  

S earch  3 8 %  

D isp lay  2 7 %  

B y  P ricin g  Mo d el 

H y b rid  1 %  

P erfo rm an ce-b ased  6 6 %  

Im p ressio n -b ased  3 3 %  

R o b u st G ro w th  in  D ig ital A d  S p en d in g  

S o u rces: IA B  In tern et A d v ertisin g  R ev en u e R ep o rt 4 /1 5 ; MA G N A  G L O B A L , F o recasts G lo b al A d v ertisin g  R ep o rt 6 /1 5  

U .S . D ig ital A d v ertisin g  R ev en u e b y  Med ia T y p e 

C A G R  =  1 6 %  

$ 4 9 .5  

$ 5 .0  

$ 7 .0  

$ 8 .1  

$ 4 .4  

$ 2 4 .9  

2 0 1 4  

$ 5 7 .7  

$ 5 .0  

$ 9 .6  

$ 8 .5  

$ 6 .4  

$ 2 8 .1  

2 0 1 5  

$ 6 6 .3  

$ 4 .6  

$ 1 1 .9  

$ 9 .0  

$ 9 .1  

$ 3 1 .6  

2 0 1 6  

S earch  O n lin e V id eo  D isp lay  S o cial O th er 

T o tal U .S . d ig ital ad v ertisin g  sp en d  is ex p ected  to  g ro w  at 1 6 %  C A G R  fro m  2 0 1 4  to  2 0 1 6 , reach in g  6 6 .3 B N . 

S p en d  o n  m o b ile ad v ertisin g  is ex p ected  to  g ro w  at a 4 8 %  C A G R  fro m  $ 1 2 .5 B N  in  2 0 1 4  to  $ 2 7 .3 B N  in  2 0 1 6  

S earch  m ark etin g  is ex p ected  to  rem ain  th e larg est co m p o n en t o v erall 

A cco rd in g  to  A d  A g e, d ig ital m ark etin g  is ex p ected  to  o v ertak e telev isio n  ad v ertisin g  in  2 0 1 6  

A cco rd in g  to  F o rrester’s U .S . d ig ital m ark etin g  fo recast, co n su m er g o o d s an d  au to m o tiv e co m p an ies are ex p ected  to  in crease search  b u d g ets b y  m o re th an  1 5 %  an n u ally  o v er th e n ex t fiv e y ears. 
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F lu en t S o lv es Mark eters’ T o p  C h allen g e… 

Q . Wh at are th e to p  m ark etin g  ch allen g es y o u r o rg an izatio n  faces? P lease select th ree facto rs. 

A cq u irin g  N ew  C u sto m ers 

R etain in g  ex istin g  cu sto m ers an d  im p ro v in g  lo y alty  an d  satisfactio n  

U n d erstan d in g  so cial m ed ia an d  u sin g  so cial ch an n els effectiv ely  

C reatin g  co n sisten t, relev an t, an d  p o sitiv e cu sto m er ex p erien ces acro ss ch an n els 

Man ag in g , co llectin g , an d  m ak in g  u se o f in tern al an d  ex tern al d ata 

C reatin g  an  au th en tic b ran d  an d  cu ltu re 

Measu rin g  R O I 

P ro tectin g  cu sto m er d ata 

G ro w in g  ch an n el an d  d ev ice ch o ices 

In teg ratin g  d ifferen t m ark etin g  ch an n els 

4 2 %  

3 6 %  

3 4 %  

3 4 %  

2 9 %  

2 7 %  

2 1 %  

2 1 %  

2 0 %  

1 4 %  

S o u rce: IB M, “T h e S tate o f Mark etin g  2 0 1 3 ” su rv ey , n = 5 1 2  m ark etin g  ex ecu tiv es 
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… b y  S o lv in g  th e T h ree Main  R easo n s B eh in d  it 

C O S T  E X P E R T IS E  L A N D S C A P E  
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C o m p etitiv e A d v an tag es 

F lu en t C o m p etito rs 

T arg etin g  S p ecifically  targ eted  b ased  o n  co n su m er b eh av io r an d  d eclared  first p arty  d ata B ased  o n  co n tex tu al relev an ce o f p u b lish er &  p ast p u b lish er p erfo rm an ce 

D ata F irst-p arty  d ata w areh o u se w ith  o v er 1 0 0 MM+  o w n ed  reco rd s; 4 5 0 K  n ew  reg istran ts p er d ay ; 2 2 MM co n su m ers v isit 5 x  o r m o re L im ited  to  u n o w n ed  th ird -p arty  d ata 

Mo b ile 7 0 %  o f traffic co m es fro m  m o b ile 

P latfo rm s are n o t m o b ile-first 

O p tim izatio n  

B ased  o n  in d iv id u al co n su m er p erfo rm an ce an d  lo o k -alik e m o d elin g  

B ased  o n  p u b lish er so u rce-lev el p erfo rm an ce 

D ig ital Med ia Majo rity  o f ad s serv ed  o n  o w n ed  an d  o p erated  m ed ia, en ab lin g  m assiv e scale an d  sig n ifican t q u ality  co n tro l R ely  o n  3 rd  p arty  m ed ia, red u cin g  q u ality  an d  v o lu m e 

C o n ten t D esig n ed  to  elicit co m m ercial resp o n se D esig n ed  to  en tertain  

Mark etin g  S erv ices H as w o rk ed  o n  an y  an d  all p erfo rm an ce ad  m o d els E x clu siv ely  o ffer eith er C P A , C P L , C P I, C P C , o r C P S  
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P latfo rm  an d  T ech n o lo g y  H ig h lig h ts 

P ro p rietary  T ech n o lo g y  

P latfo rm  en ab les F lu en t to  co n tro l th e en tire d ata co llectio n  an d  ad -serv in g  p ro cess fo r th e co n su m ers th at v isit F lu en t’s p ro d u cts 

A d  S erv er –  d isp lay s “A d  P ag es” an d  d eterm in es w h eth er a u ser is a retu rn in g  u ser in  o rd er to  av o id  serv in g  d u p licate ad v ertisem en ts. 

Mo b ile-F irst A rch itectu re –  7 0 %  o f co n su m ers b ro w se F lu en t’s p ro d u cts u sin g  m o b ile d ev ices. T h e en tire co n su m er ex p erien ce is created  first fo r m o b ile an d  o p tim ized  in  reg ard s to  creativ e. 

R eal-tim e A d ju stm en t – p latfo rm  en ab les F lu en t to  targ et, su p p ress, an d  ad ju st ad  serv in g  lo g ic in  real-tim e b ased  o n  a co n su m er’s d ev ice, su rv ey  resp o n ses, ag e, g en d er, g eo -lo catio n , th e d ate, th e tim e, an d  h o w  h e/sh e en g ag es w ith  ad v ertisem en ts. 

Q u estio n  S electo r - d eterm in es w h ich  su rv ey  p ag es to  d isp lay  an d  th e o rd er u sin g  th e m eta d ata, reg istratio n  d ata, traffic so u rce an d  p ro d u ct, etc. 

O ffer Match in g  Mo d u le –  filters an d  m atch es a v alid  su rv ey  to  sp ecific o ffers. 

R etarg etin g  P ix el Mo d u le –  p laces o n e o r m o re co o k ies o n  th e u ser’s b ro w ser. 

F lu en t’s 3 rd -P arty  S o ftw are an d  In teg ratio n s 

R eco rd  D eliv ery  

E x p erian  

S IL V E R P O P  

O R A C L E  

MA R K E T IN G  C L O U D  

S A IL T H R U  

…an d  m o re 

V alid atio n  

C red it b u reau  an d  o th er v erificatio n /v alid atio n  en tities 

R etarg etin g  

Majo r search  en g in e, so cial m ed ia an d  d ig ital m ark etin g  p latfo rm s 
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P ro d u ct O v erv iew  

F lu en t’s p ro p rietary  au d ien ce targ etin g  p ro d u cts in clu d e th e fo llo w in g  categ o ries: 

— P ro p rietary : 

O w n ed  Med ia (O 2 ) 

L o y alty  &  R ew ard s 

S am p les 

O th er P ro m o tio n s 

In teg rated  A d  P ro d u cts 

A d F lo w  

S earch  S elect 

D ata P ro d u cts 

— T h ird -P arty : 

A fflu en t A ffiliate N etw o rk  

S am p les& S av in g s 

C h eap flig h ts 

.co m  

T rav el d eals fro m  th e ex p erts 

F irst N am e: 

E m ail: 

L ast N am e: 

Z ip  C o d e: 

lifescrip tad v an tag e 

Q U A K E R  

S H O U T  

S p len d a 

S am p les& S av in g s 

WE S T E R N  U N IO N  

WU  

N O  MA T T E R  WH E R E  Y O U  A R E  

G et 5 0 %  O F F  y o u r n ex t q u alify in g  m o n ey  tran sfer o r b ill p ay m en t fee*  

P lease co m p lete th e fo rm  b elo w  

F irst N am e 

L ast N am e 

E m ail 

Z ip  C o d e 

S u b m it 

F R E E  S A MP L E S ! 

1  2  S U B MIT  

ID I +  F lu en t S Y N E R G Y  

ID I B y  lev erag in g  ID I p u b lic d ata sets an d  tech n o lo g y , w e ex p ect th at F lu en t w ill b e ab le to  m o re 

q u ick ly  in tro d u ce ad d itio n al ro b u st p ro d u ct o fferin g s to  clien ts, in clu d in g  real-tim e trig g ers 

p ro m p tin g  m ark etin g  calls-to -actio n . 
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P ro d u cts U n d erp in n ed  b y  R o b u st Mo b ile T ech n o lo g y  an d  S tro n g  Mo b ile In d u stry  T ailw in d s 

F lu en t’s Mo b ile A d v an tag e 

F lu en t m ak es m o b ile ad v ertisin g  R O I-p o sitiv e fo r m ark eters an d  a p o sitiv e ex p erien ce fo r co n su m ers 

P recisio n  T arg etin g  

A s a “p eo p le-b ased  m ark etin g  p latfo rm ”, ad s are targ eted  to  lo g g ed -in  co n su m ers b ased  o n  th eir co n firm ed  an d  v alid ated  id en tities, n o t th eir co o k ies an d  p ix els 

P ay -F o r-P erfo rm an ce 

F lu en t’s p ricin g  m o d el em p h asizes p erfo rm an ce –  o n ly  g ettin g  p aid  w h en  co n su m ers resp o n d  to  F lu en t’s ad v ertisem en ts –  creatin g  fav o rab le p o sitio n in g  to  o th er co m p etito rs 

Massiv e S cale 

F lu en t g en erates resu lts w h ich  d riv e sig n ifican t sales v o lu m e fo r ad v ertisers 

N o  A ccid en tal C lick s o r B o ts 

F lu en t’s ad  u n its an d  real-tim e su rv ey  tech n o lo g y  en su re th at co n su m ers o n ly  receiv e ad v ertisem en ts w h ich  in terest th em  

Mo b ile Mark etin g  is In creasin g ly  Im p o rtan t fo r C P G /R etail B ran d s 

Mo b ile ad v ertisem en ts are en h an cin g  C P G /R etail sales an d  b ran d  aw aren ess th ro u g h o u t th e co n su m er’s p ath  to  p u rch ase 

8 6 %  o f co n su m ers u se th eir m o b ile d ev ice to  p rep are fo r g ro cery  sh o p p in g (1 ) 

8 1 %  o f co n su m ers first lo o k  fo r g o o d s o n  th eir m o b ile d ev ice b efo re v isitin g  a retail sto re(1 ) 

7 0 %  o f co n su m ers said  th ey  en d ed  u p  p u rch asin g  an d  try in g  o u t a n ew  p ro d u ct as a d irect resu lt o f seein g  a m o b ile ad (1 ) 

6 8 %  o f co n su m ers u se th eir m o b ile d ev ice to  d isco v er a C P G  b ran d  o r p ro d u ct p rio r to  sh o p p in g (1 ) 

Mo b ile tech n o lo g y  m ak es it easier to  cap tu re, m easu re, an d  an aly ze co n su m er sh o p p in g  b eh av io r 

L ev erag in g  m o b ile d ata, C P G /R etail b ran d s can  targ et co n su m ers w ith  m u ch  g reater p recisio n , th ereb y  en su rin g  g reater m ark etin g  R O I 

(1 ) N in th D ecim al Mo b ile A u d ien ce In sig h ts R ep o rt 
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C ase S tu d y : Western  U n io n  

F lu en t’s p recise targ etin g  an d  u n iq u e ab ility  to  p re-q u alify  co n su m ers b efo re serv in g  ad s to  th em  en ab led  u s to  b etter en g ag e w ith  o u r m o st v alu ab le cu sto m ers at scale. 

WE S T E R N  U N IO N  WU  B jo rn  L eiv g o ld  

D irecto r o f C R M, L o y alty  &  P ay m en ts Mark etin g  

B A C K G R O U N D  

Western  U n io n —o n e o f th e larg est m o n ey -tran sfer co m p an ies in  th e w o rld —n eed ed  to  raise aw aren ess o f its serv ice o fferin g s. 

Wan ted  to  g ro w  its list o f em ail su b scrib ers fo r th eir C R M p ro g ram s. 

P rio r to  w o rk in g  w ith  F lu en t, en g ag em en t am o n g st n ew  cu sto m ers acq u ired  w ith  th ird  p arty  v en d o rs w as lo w . 

C A MP A IG N  

F lu en t d eliv ered  targ eted  co n ten t v ia d isp lay  ad s to  co n su m ers w h o  ex p licitly  stated  th at th ey  h ad  u tilized  m o n ey  tran sfer serv ices in  th e p ast. 

F lu en t’s lo o k alik e m o d elin g  an d  o p tim izatio n  tech n o lo g y  w as ap p lied  to  ram p  u p  v o lu m e b y  id en tify in g  an d  targ etin g  co n su m ers th at m o st resem b led  th eir b est cu sto m ers an d  w ere m o st lik ely  to  u tilize U S  serv ices. 

R E S U L T S  

8 X  im p ro v em en t in  o p en  rates an d  en g ag em en t co m p ared  to  p rev io u s effo rts. 

O n g o in g  g ro w th  o f 1 5 X  in  th ese k ey  m etrics w ith in  th e 4 -m o n th  cam p aig n  trial. 

Western  U n io n  is n o w  ex p an d in g  its p ro g ram  an d  in clu d in g  ad d itio n al ad v ertisin g  effo rt fo r th eir U S  o u tb o u n d  to  C en tral an d  S o u th  A m erican  b u sin ess. 
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C ase S tu d y : S h o e C arn iv al 

T y p ically , co n su m er en g ag em en t w ith  em ail p ro sp ectin g  is lo w er th an  w ith  reten tio n -b ased  m ailin g s, b u t w e d id n ’t see th at w ith  F lu en t. E n g ag em en t h as b een  ju st as h ig h , an d  in  so m e cases, ev en  h ig h er, th an  w ith  o u r stan d ard  cam p aig n s. 

S H O E  C A R N iV A L  Mich ael N u ss eC o m m erce Mark etin g  Man ag er 

B A C K G R O U N D  

S h o e C arn iv al w an ted  to  rap id ly  g ro w  en ro llm en t in  its lo y alty  p ro g ram , as w ell as in crease th e size o f its em ail su b scrib er list. 

T h ey  saw  g reat resu lts w ith  P O S  in -sto re sig n u p s, an d  w an ted  to  ex ten d  th at reach  o n lin e. 

T h e g o al w as to  accelerate g ro w th  b ey o n d  th e w alls o f its o w n  w eb site, w ith o u t sacrificin g  stro n g  o rg an ic u ser en g ag em en t m etrics. 

C A MP A IG N  

F lu en t ran  p erfo rm an ce-b ased  o n lin e an d  m o b ile ad s to  p ro m o te en ro llm en t in  th e lo y alty  p ro g ram . 

L ev erag in g  th e F lu en t p latfo rm ’s ab ility  to  in g est ex istin g  “m o st v alu ab le cu sto m er” d ata, S h o e C arn iv al w as ab le to  targ et lo o k alik es o f its b est cu sto m ers fo r acq u isitio n . 

F lu en t o p tim ized  th e acq u isitio n  cam p aig n  in  p erp etu ity  b ased  o n  o n g o in g  p erfo rm an ce an aly tics. 

R E S U L T S  

S h o e C arn iv al rap id ly  g rew  its lo y alty  p ro g ram  m em b ersh ip  an d  em ail d atab ase w ith o u t sacrificin g  rev en u e p er su b scrib er. 

C lick -to -O p en  rates o n  w elco m e m essag es fo r F lu en t-g en erated  sig n -u p s w ere 1 3 %  h ig h er th an  w eb site sig n -u p s. 

B o u n ce rates w ere n eg lig ib le (an d  also  lo w er th an  w eb site sig n -u p s). 
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T ru sted  Mark etin g  P artn er 

T h e stren g th  o f F lu en t’s p latfo rm  is d em o n strated  b y  its p o sitio n  as a tru sted  p artn er to  lead in g  m ark etin g  so lu tio n s p ro v id ers, in clu d in g : 

–  IB M 

–  O racle 

–  S alesfo rce 

–  E x p erian  

F req u en tly , F lu en t is th e reco m m en d ed  so lu tio n  w h en  clien ts n eed  to  targ et an d  acq u ire n ew  cu sto m ers at m assiv e scale 

F lu en t is o ften  in v ited  to  sp eak  at co n feren ces h o sted  b y  its m ark etin g  p artn ers in  o rd er to  b etter illu strate th e p o w er o f its m ark etin g  p latfo rm  

S elected  Mark etin g  P artn ers 

O R A C L E  

MA R K E T IN G  C L O U D  

E X P E R IA N T M 

S A IL T H R U  

S IL V E R P O P  

A n  IB M C o m p an y  

…an d  m o re 
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F lu en t R ev en u e b y  A d v ertiser Metrics 

A v erag e R ev en u e p er T o p  1 0  C lien t ($ 0 0 0 s) 

1 6 5 %  G ro w th  

$ 2 ,1 0 8 .5  

$ 3 ,1 5 4 .6  

$ 5 ,5 9 2 .0  

2 0 1 3  

2 0 1 4  

L T M (Ju n -1 5 ) 

A v erag e Mo n th ly  L T V  –  T o p  1 0 0  C lien ts(1 ) (D u ratio n ) 

’1 2  –  ’1 4  C A G R  =  4 4 %  

1 0 .7  

2 0 .6  

2 2 .1  

2 0 1 2  

2 0 1 3  

2 0 1 4  

A d  R ev en u e b y  V ertical(2 ) 

Med ia &  E n t. 1 0 %  

R etail &  C P G  1 6 %  

F in an cial S erv ices 1 9 %  

D iv ersified  C u sto m er A cq u isitio n  2 1 %  

H ealth  &  Welln ess 2 4 %  

O th er 1 0 %  

F lu en t h as seen  ro b u st g ro w th  in  its R etail &  C P G  v ertical, w ith  Y -o -Y  g ro w th  o f n early  5 5 %  co m p ared  to  1 H  2 0 1 4  

A d  R ev en u e b y  R elatio n sh ip  T y p e (3 ) 

O th er 3 %  

C h an n el 3 9 %  

D irect 2 3 %  

S earch  3 5 %  

(1 ) B ased  o n  to p  o f 1 0 0  ad v ertisers ran k ed  b y  F Y 2 0 1 4  w ith  an n u al sp en d  o f > $ 6 0 K  

(2 ) B ased  o n  H o sted  &  D riv e-T o -S ite R ev en u e b y  V ertical, 1 H  2 0 1 5  

(3 ) O th er is co m p rised  o f S earch  / C h an n el an d  U n categ o rized , 2 Q  2 0 1 5  
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E x cep tio n al F in an cial P erfo rm an ce 

R ev en u e G ro w th  ($ MM) 

R ev en u e G ro w th  =  1 7 9 %  

C A G R  =  2 9 %  

$ 4 5 .3  

$ 5 2 .6  

$ 6 8 .0  

$ 1 2 6 .2  

E B IT D A  G en eratio n  ($ MM) an d  Marg in  (% ) 

E B IT D A  G ro w th  =  3 1 0 %  

C A G R  =  4 2 %  

$ 4 .9  

$ 7 .2  

$ 7 .0  

$ 2 0 .1  

2 0 1 2 A  

2 0 1 3 A  

2 0 1 4 A  

L T M (S ep  ‘1 5 ) 

2 0 1 2 A  

2 0 1 3 A  

2 0 1 4 A  

L T M (S ep  ‘1 5 ) 

T railin g  T w elv e Mo n th s (“T T M”) R ev en u e an d  E B IT D A , as o f S ep t. 2 0 1 5 , o f $ 1 2 6 .2  m illio n  an d  $ 2 0 .1  m illio n , rep resen tin g  g ro w th  o f 8 6  p ercen t an d  1 8 7  p ercen t, resp ectiv ely , co m p ared  to  F Y  2 0 1 4  

G ro w th  d riv en  b y  in creased  y ield  an d  scaled  m ed ia b u y s w ith  m u ltip le p artn ers an d  p latfo rm s 

–  F u tu re g ro w th  d riv en  b y  in creasin g  p ercen tag e o f m ed ia sp en d  allo cated  to  h ig h  g ro w th  p o ten tial p latfo rm s (G o o g le, F aceb o o k , Millen n ial, etc.) 

2 9 %  R ev en u e C A G R  to  d ate 

E B IT D A  m arg in  o f 1 6 % ; L o w  C ap E x  

E B IT D A  to  F ree C ash  F lo w  co n v ersio n  o f 9 8 %  (T T M E B IT D A  less C ap E x  as o f S ep t. 2 0 1 5 ) 

(1 ) 2 0 1 5  fin an cials in clu d e actu als th ro u g h  S ep tem b er 3 0 , 2 0 1 5 . 2 4  ID I



G ro w th  O p p o rtu n ities 

O p p o rtu n ity  

D escrip tio n  

P ro d u ct: D ata P ro d u cts 

Mo n etize F lu en t’s p ro p rietary  d ata asset o u tsid e o f its n etw o rk  b y  d eliv erin g  ad  targ etin g  an d  co n su m er in sig h ts so lu tio n s (e.g ., d ev elo p m en t o f cu sto m  au d ien ces fo r targ etin g  in  sp ecific v erticals su ch  as C P G  an d  retail) 

P ro d u ct: Mark et R esearch  

Mo n etize F lu en t’s p ro p rietary  su rv ey  m o d u le b y  g ath erin g  co n su m er in sig h ts fo r B 2 C  b ran d s an d  m ark etin g  serv ice p ro v id ers. S u rv ey s can  b e u tilized  fo r in tern al p ro d u ct strateg y  d ev elo p m en t as w ell as fo r ex tern al th o u g h t lead ersh ip  (w h ite p ap ers, etc.) 

P ro d u ct: C R M (p aid ) 

A ccelerate b u ild  o u t o f F lu en t’s co m p eten cy  in  lev erag in g  p aid  m ed ia to  retarg et its u sers an d  d riv e g reater C L V  (e.g ., G o o g le, F aceb o o k , S earch , D isp lay , Mo b ile, P ro g ram m atic, etc.) 

P ro d u ct: C R M (o w n ed ) 

D ev elo p  ro b u st strateg y  an d  p ro d u cts d esig n ed  to  retarg et F lu en t’s u sers an d  d riv e g reater C L V  lev erag in g  o w n ed , h ig h er-m arg in  ch an n els –  em ail, p u sh , S MS , call cen ter 

F u rth er D ev elo p m en t o f R etarg etin g  P ro d u cts 

D ev elo p  a m o re co m p reh en siv e seg m en tatio n  o f co n su m ers in  o rd er to  create o n g o in g , o m n i-ch an n el m ark etin g  strateg ies 

1 0 -2 0 %  o f F lu en t’s cu rren t au d ien ce can  b e ad d ressed  w ith  th ese strateg ies, d ram atically  g ro w in g  th e an n u al rev en u e g en erated  o n  th ese co n su m ers 

S ales T eam  an d  G eo g rap h ic E x p an sio n  

A  b u ilt o u t sales cap ab ility  w ill en ab le F lu en t to  w o rk  w ith  m o re d irect ad v ertisers, targ et sp ecific in d u stry  v erticals, su ch  as C P G , realize m arg in  u p sid e, an d  u ltim ately  ex p an d  b ey o n d  th e U .S . 

A cq u isitio n s o f S m aller C o m p etito rs an d  N ich e P lay ers 

F lu en t h as id en tified  a n u m b er o f p o ten tial b o lt-o n  acq u isitio n s th at co u ld  fu rth er au g m en t its m ed ia an d  m ark etin g  strateg y  
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ID I R isk  / D ata A n aly tics Man ag em en t B u sin ess - S u m m ary  

ID I 

R isk  Man ag em en t 

N eed s: F aced  w ith  b u sin ess, leg islativ e an d  reg u lato ry  co m p lian ce, b u sin esses m u st rely  o n  serv ice p ro v id ers to  h elp  id en tify , assess an d  p rio ritize risk s. 

S o lu tio n : ID I p ro v id es actio n ab le in tellig en ce, en ab lin g  b u sin esses to  o b tain  in fo rm atio n  o n  co n su m ers, b u sin esses an d  assets; facilitate th e lo catio n  o f in d iv id u als an d  id en tity  v erificatio n ; an d  su p p o rt crim in al, leg al, fin an cial, in su ran ce an d  co rp o rate in v estig atio n s an d  d u e d ilig en ce. 

ID I is stro n g ly  p o sitio n ed  w ith in  th e rap id ly  g ro w in g , m u lti-b illio n  d o llar d ata fu sio n  in d u stry  

0 2  

E x p erien ced  ex ecu tiv es w ith  p ro v en  su ccess b u ild in g  th e lead in g  d ata fu sio n  p ro v id ers 

0 4  

F ix ed  C O G S  m o d el, g en eratin g  in creasin g  m arg in s as ID I scales an d  m atu res 

E stab lish ed  co re m ark et 

0 1  

P ro p rietary  S y stem s 

N ex t-g en eratio n  tech n o lo g y  to  su p p o rt th e in creasin g  n eed s o f m u ltip le in d u stries 

P ro v en  Man ag em en t 

0 3  

S tro n g  F o u n d atio n  

E stab lish ed  in fo rm atio n  tech n o lo g y  b u sin ess to  ex p ed ite g ro w th  

In creasin g  Marg in s 

0 5  

Mark et 

B ig  D ata A n aly tics Mark et p red icted  to  reach  $ 1 2 5  b illio n  w o rld w id e in  2 0 1 5 . 

F rau d  A n aly tics Mark et alo n e ex p ected  to  g ro w  fro m  $ 8 .8 7  b illio n  (2 0 1 4 ) to  $ 2 0 .4 9  b illio n  b y  2 0 1 9  

R isk  P ro d u ct E x am p le 

R eal tim e q u eries an d  rep o rts o n  p eo p le, assets, b u sin esses, an d  in terrelatio n sh ip s 

C o re B u sin ess V ertical F o cu s 

- B an k in g  &  F in an cial S erv ices 

- L aw  E n fo rcem en t &  G o v ern m en t 

- In su ran ce &  H ealth care 

- R etail / C o rp o rate R isk  

- A tto rn ey s / L aw  F irm s 

- C o llectio n s 

- B ack g ro u n d  S creen in g  &  In v estig ativ e 

S o u rces: ID C  ID C  P red ictio n s 2 0 1 5 ; Mark etsan d Mark ets F rau d  D etectio n  an d  P rev en tio n  Mark et 7 /2 5  
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A cq u isitio n  S y n erg ies 

B ig  D ata F u sio n  &  A n aly tics 

ID I’s co re co m p eten cy  is b ig  d ata fu sio n  an d  d ata an aly tics. T h ere ex ists sig n ifican t o p p o rtu n ity  to  o v erlay  ID I tech n o lo g y , u sin g  m ach in e learn in g  to  an aly ze, id en tify  an d  seg m en t ad v ertisers’ cu sto m er d ata fo r m o d elin g  ag ain st F lu en t’s m assiv e co n su m er d atab ase. 

C lo u d -b ased  In frastru ctu re 

ID I’s secu re clo u d -b ased  in frastru ctu re is d esig n ed  fo r th e sto rag e an d  rap id  p ro cessin g  o f m assiv e d atasets w ith in  an  u ltra-secu re en v iro n m en t. B y  u tilizin g  su ch  an  en v iro n m en t, F lu en t is ex p ected  to  h av e th e ab ility  to  scale d ata assets far b ey o n d  cu rren t cap ab ilities. 

G reater C o n su m er In sig h t - Mark etin g  

In sig h t fro m  ID I’s su b stan tial rep o sito ry  o f p u b lic an d  p ro p rietary  reco rd s is ex p ected  to  en ab le F lu en t to  b u ild  m o re ro b u st co n su m er p ro files, w h ich  w o u ld  resu lt in  a sig n ifican t in crease in  m o n etizatio n  o p p o rtu n ity  p er reco rd . 

G reater S u b ject In sig h t - R isk  

ID I’s risk  m an ag em en t p latfo rm  fo r d u e d ilig en ce, risk  assessm en t, frau d  d etectio n  an d  p rev en tio n , an d  au th en ticatio n  an d  v erificatio n  is ex p ected  to  b e ab le to  g lean  g reater in sig h t o n  su b jects fro m  a risk  p ersp ectiv e b y  in teg ratin g  asp ects o f F lu en t’s u n iq u e, first-p arty  co n su m er p ro files. 

A d d itio n al P ro d u ct O p p o rtu n ities 

T h e m arriag e o f ID I tech n o lo g y  creates o p p o rtu n ity  fo r F lu en t to  d ep lo y  ad d itio n al d ata access ch an n els an d  m ark etin g  p ro d u cts to  its cu sto m ers. E x am p les: U tilizatio n  o f ID I’s tech n o lo g y  p latfo rm  to  d eliv er real-tim e d ata an aly tics to  ad v ertisers v ia an  o n lin e in terface; real-tim e trig g ers p ro m p tin g  m ark etin g  calls-to -actio n . 
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K ey  In v estm en t H ig h lig h ts 

T E C H N O L O G Y  

ID I 

N ex t-g en eratio n  d ata fu sio n  an d  an aly tics p latfo rm  

F lu en t 

R o b u st, p ro p rietary  au d ien ce targ etin g  tech n o lo g y  

E x p erien ced  Man ag em en t w ith  R eco rd  o f S u ccess 

ID I 

F o u n d ers an d  m an ag em en t resp o n sib le fo r b u ild in g  m ark et lead in g  d ata fu sio n  co m p an ies 

F lu en t 

D eep  ex p erien ce in  p erfo rm an ce m ark etin g , tech n o lo g y , th o u g h t lead ersh ip  

L arg e an d  G ro w in g  Mark et O p p o rtu n ity  

ID I 

Mu lti-b illio n  d o llar m ark et w ith  h ig h  d o u b le-d ig it m arg in s at scale 

F lu en t 

~  $ 4 9 .5  b illio n  U S  d ig ital ad v ertisin g  m ark et; 1 2 %  av erag e an n u al g ro w th  

Massiv e A d d ressab le Mark ets 

ID I 

R isk  an aly tics ap p licab le to  d o zen s o f in d u stries an d  alm o st ev ery  b u sin ess tran sactio n  in  th e U S  

F lu en t 

V ertical-ag n o stic - so lu tio n s ap p licab le acro ss n u m ero u s in d u stry  v erticals 

E x cep tio n al F in an cial P ro file 

ID I 

F ix ed -co st, h ig h  m arg in  b u sin ess m o d el 

F lu en t 

R ap id  Y O Y  rev en u e g ro w th  w ith  in creasin g  m arg in s 

D ata an d  D ata P ro cessin g  

ID I 

B ig  d ata an aly tics an d  p ro cessin g , creatin g  actio n ab le in tellig en ce fro m  d isp arate d ata 

F lu en t 

Massiv e first-p arty  d ata asset –  1 0 0 MM+  co n su m er reco rd s fu lly  o w n ed  b y  F lu en t 

A h ead  o f th e T ren d s 

ID I 

T ech n o lo g y  b u ilt o n  m o d ern  d ay  co m p u ter scien ce m eth o d s, in clu d in g  m ach in e learn in g  

F lu en t 

E n g in eered  fo r Mo b ile –  7 0 %  o f traffic is m o b ile, w ith  m illio n s o f m o b ile v isito rs d aily  

©  2 0 1 5  ID I, In c. A ll rig h ts reserv ed . 2 8  

ID I



ID I F lu en t 

A P P E N D IX  

A : R eg u latio n  G  D isclo su re (E B IT D A  R eco n ciliatio n ) 

B : Merg er C o n sid eratio n  

C : S u m m ary  C ap  T ab le 
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A p p en d ix  A : R eg u latio n  G  D isclo su re 

F lu en t N et In co m e to  E B IT D A  R eco n ciliatio n  

T h e reco n ciliatio n  o f E B IT D A  to  n et in co m e is as fo llo w s (in  th o u san d s): 

2 0 1 2  2 0 1 3  2 0 1 4  L T M S ep  ‘1 5  

N et in co m e $ 4 ,0 7 1  $ 3 ,7 1 0  $ 1 ,6 9 5  $ 9 ,6 9 8  

A d d  b ack : 

In terest (in co m e) ex p en se, n et (2 5 ) (1 5 ) (3 ) 6  

In co m e tax  ex p en se 4 1 9  3 1 2  1 9 1  1 ,0 3 8  

C ap tiv e in su ran ce p rem iu m s*  - 2 3  2 ,2 9 1  3 ,1 1 2  

D ep reciatio n  an d  am o rtizatio n  ex p en se 1 7 7  2 9 3  2 9 8  2 1 9  

S to ck -b ased  co m p en satio n  am o rtizatio n  ex p en se - 3 4 7  - - 

D iscretio n ary  b o n u ses p aid  to  o w n ers*  2 8 9  2 ,2 5 6  2 ,4 6 3  5 ,9 7 8  

G ain /L o ss o n  d isp o sal o f assets - 9 1  3 4  - 

Write-o ff o f G o o d w ill - 1 5 7  - - 

E B IT D A  $ 4 ,9 3 1  $ 7 ,1 7 4  $ 6 ,9 6 9  $ 2 0 ,0 5 1  

*  R eflects item s n o t ex p ected  to  recu r p o st-clo sin g . 
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A p p en d ix  B : Merg er C o n sid eratio n  

Merg er C o n sid eratio n  

D ep o sit 

N o n -refu n d ab le d ep o sit in  th e am o u n t o f $ 1 0 .0  m illio n  cash  

3 0 0 ,0 0 0  sh ares o f th e C o m p an y ’s S eries B  N o n -V o tin g  

E q u ity  C o n sid eratio n  

C o n v ertib le P referred  S to ck , co n v ertib le in to  1 5 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  sh ares o f th e C o m p an y ’s co m m o n  sto ck  (“C o n v ersio n  S h ares”) (1 ) (2 ) 

C ash  C o n sid eratio n  

$ 1 0 0 .0  m illio n  in  cash , in clu d in g  th e D ep o sit (3 ) 

(1 ) “C o n v ersio n  S h ares” m ean s th e g reater o f (i) 3 0 0 ,0 0 0  sh ares o f S eries B  P referred  S to ck , w h ich  sh all b e co n v ertib le, su b ject to  th e p ro v isio n s o f th e S eries B  P referred  C ertificate o f D esig n atio n , in to  1 5 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  sh ares o f P aren t C o m m o n  S to ck , o r (ii) if th e C lo sin g  P rice is less th an  $ 6 .6 7  p er sh are, a n u m b er o f sh ares o f S eries B  P referred  S to ck  w h ich  sh all b e co n v ertib le, su b ject to  th e p ro v isio n s o f th e S eries B  C ertificate o f D esig n atio n , in to  sh ares o f P aren t C o m m o n  S to ck  h av in g  an  ag g reg ate v alu e (b ased  o n  th e C lo sin g  P rice) eq u al to  $ 1 0 0 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 . 

(2 ) A t th e E ffectiv e T im e o f th e m erg er, th e C o m p an y  ex p ects to  d eliv er a w ritten  co n sen t o f C o m p an y  sto ck h o ld ers rep resen tin g  a m ajo rity  in  v o tin g  in terest o f C o m m o n  S to ck , in  acco rd an ce w ith  th e C o m p an y ’s g o v ern in g  d o cu m en ts an d  th e G en eral C o rp o ratio n  L aw  o f th e S tate o f D elaw are ap p ro v in g  th e issu an ce o f th e C o n v ersio n  S h ares. T h e S eries B  P referred  w ill au to m atically  co n v ert in to  th e C o n v ersio n  S h ares o n  th e d ate th at is th e tw en ty  first (2 1 st) d ay  fo llo w in g  th e m ailin g  o f an  in fo rm atio n  statem en t to  th e C o m p an y ’s sto ck h o ld ers d isclo sin g  th e C o m p an y ’s sto ck h o ld er ap p ro v al o f th e issu an ce o f th e C o n v ersio n  S h ares. 

(3 ) ID I ex p ects to  fin an ce th e rem ain in g  acq u isitio n  co n sid eratio n  u sin g  d eb t an d  eq u ity . 
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A p p en d ix  C : S u m m ary  C ap  T ab le 

as o f N o v em b er 3 0 , 2 0 1 5  

P re-Merg er (1 )(2 )(3 )(4 ) 

S h are C lass O u tstan d in g  S u b ject to  V estin g  S u b ject to  E arn -o u t O u tstan d in g  

(5 ) P referred  A  4 ,9 6 5 ,3 0 2  - 1 ,8 0 0 ,2 2 0  6 ,7 6 5 ,5 2 2  2 3 %  

C o m m o n  1 5 ,6 0 3 ,2 8 6  - 9 0 0 ,1 0 8  1 6 ,5 0 3 ,3 9 4  5 7 %  

(6 ) C o m m o n  O p tio n s - 4 8 2 ,0 0 0  - 4 8 2 ,0 0 0  2 %  

(6 ) C o m m o n  R S U ’s - 4 ,5 0 1 ,5 0 0  - 4 ,5 0 1 ,5 0 0  1 6 %  

C o m m o n  Warran ts - 6 4 0 ,2 0 5  - 6 4 0 ,2 0 5  2 %  

T o tal 2 0 ,5 6 8 ,5 8 8  5 ,6 2 3 ,7 0 5  2 ,7 0 0 ,3 2 8  2 8 ,3 9 2 ,6 2 1  1 0 0 %  

(1 ) E x clu d es issu an ce o f 3 0 0 ,0 0 0  P referred  B  sh ares (co n v ertib le in to  1 5 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  co m m o n  sh ares) to  b e issu ed  to  th e sh aresh o ld ers o f F lu en t at clo sin g . 

(2 ) E x clu d es acq u isitio n  fin an cin g s arran g ed  to  d ate fo r $ 5 0  m illio n  in  g ro ss p ro ceed s fro m  th e issu an ce o f 1 4 9 ,9 2 5  P referred  B  sh ares (co n v ertib le in to  7 ,4 9 6 ,2 5 0  co m m o n  sh ares) an d  w arran ts to  p u rch ase 7 4 9 ,6 2 5  co m m o n  sh ares. ID I ex p ects to  fin an cin g  th e rem ain in g  acq u isitio n  co n sid eratio n  u sin g  d eb t an d  eq u ity . 

(3 ) E x clu d es g ran tin g  o f 9 ,7 6 5 ,0 0 0  R estricted  S to ck  U n its (C o m m o n  R S U ’s) to  ID I em p lo y ees an d  d irecto rs, su b ject to  sh areh o ld er ap p ro v al at th e n ex t A n n u al S h areh o ld er Meetin g . 

(4 ) ID I ex p ects to  issu e u p  to  7 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  eq u ity  aw ard s to  cu rren t an d  fu tu re F lu en t em p lo y ees p o st-clo sin g . 

(5 ) A ll P referred  A  sh ares co n v ert to  C o m m o n  o n  a 1 :1  b asis. 

(6 ) S u b ject to  v estin g  p erio d s o f 1 -5  y ears 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fluent, Inc. and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Fluent, Inc. and
Subsidiaries at December 31, 2014, and the consolidated results of their operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ EisnerAmper LLP

New York, New York
April 27, 2015



FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(amounts in thousands, except share data)
 
   December 31, 
   2014  
ASSETS   

Current assets:   
Cash   $ 3,474  
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $402    13,320  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    3,518  
Income tax receivable    150  

Total current assets    20,462  

Property and equipment, net    396  
Other noncurrent assets    727  

Total assets   $ 21,585  
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

Current liabilities:   
Accounts payable   $ 4,824  
Accrued expenses and deferred rent liability    4,244  
Borrowings on line of credit    2,000  

Total current liabilities    11,068  
Deferred tax liabilities, net    211  

Total liabilities    11,279  

Stockholders’ equity:   
Common stock, $.01 par value: 15,000,000 shares authorized; 13,500,000 shares issued and outstanding    —    
Additional paid-in capital    908  
Retained earnings    9,398  

Total stockholders’ equity    10,306  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 21,585  

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
(amounts in thousands)
 

   
Year Ended

December 31, 
   2014  
Revenue   $ 67,965  
Cost of revenue    49,152  
Gross profit    18,813  
Selling, general, and administrative expenses    16,896  
Loss on disposal of assets    34  
Operating income    1,883  
Interest income, net    3  
Income before income taxes    1,886  
Provision for income taxes    191  
Net income    1,695  
Comprehensive income   $ 1,695  

See accompanying notes to financial statements
 

3



FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
(amounts in thousands, except share data)
 
   Common Stock (1)    Additional    Retained     
   Shares    Amount   Paid-in Capital   Earnings   Total  
Balance – January 1, 2014    13,500,000     —       908     7,703     8,611  
Net income    —       —       —       1,695     1,695  
Balance - December 31, 2014    13,500,000    $ —      $ 908    $ 9,398    $10,306  

 
(1) Net of subscription receivable

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands)
 

   
Year Ended

December 31, 
   2014  
Operating activities:   

Net income   $ 1,695  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:   

Depreciation and amortization    298  
Loss on disposal of assets    34  
Deferred taxes    79  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   

Accounts receivable    (4,734) 
Prepaid expenses and other current and noncurrent assets    (998) 
Accounts payable    2,525  
Accrued expenses and deferred rent liability    2,169  
Income taxes    (150) 

Net cash provided by operating activities    918  
Investing activities:   

Capital expenditures    (292) 
Net cash used in investing activities    (292) 

Financing activities:   
Borrowings on line of credit    1,400  

Net cash provided by financing activities    1,400  
Net increase in cash    2,026  
Cash at beginning of year    1,448  
Cash at end of year   $ 3,474  
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:   

Cash paid during the year for income taxes   $ 25  

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Fluent, Inc. (collectively, with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware on August 19, 2010, and has elected to be treated as an S
corporation. It formally commenced operations in September 2010.

The Company provides performance-based digital advertising and marketing services and solutions to advertisers, publishers, and advertising agencies using
proprietary and third-party platforms. The Company’s proprietary-hosted solutions deliver performance-based services to advertisers and provide enhanced
monetization for publishers (websites and other content owners) through the use of its internally developed technologies and methods that are capable of
segmenting users and serving targeted advertisements online, on mobile devices, and via other media. As part of its proprietary solutions, the Company also
owns and operates its own websites (O2), which provide users with promotional offers, including sweepstakes, job listings, and offers for other goods and
services using its targeted ad serving capabilities.

The Company also provides third-party solutions through its affiliate network and other brokered services.

The Company’s customers are primarily located in the United States. The Company is headquartered in New York City.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 

[1] Basis of preparation:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

 
[2] Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fluent, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, American Prize Center, LLC (APC);
Reward Zone USA, LLC (RZU); NetSong, Ltd (Net Song); and Deliver Technology, LLC (DT). The operating results of RZU have been included since
the date of the contribution agreement of March 1, 2013. The operating results of DT have been included since the date of the contribution agreement
of February 1, 2014. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

 
[3] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates include depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense,
unbilled revenue, income tax provision, revenue reserves and certain accrued expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

 
[4] Fair value of financial instruments:

The Company utilizes fair value measurements when required. The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, other noncurrent
assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and borrowing on line of credit approximate their respective fair values as of December 31, 2014 due to
their short-term nature.
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
 
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 
[5] Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized in accordance with terms detailed in advertiser agreements and/or the attendant insertion order(s). These terms typically call for
a specific payout per conversion based on a predefined user action (for example, a registration, a toolbar download, a newsletter sign-up, or click-
through) subject to certain qualifying conditions (most significant, each user must be validated and/or unique to the client’s existing database). These
user actions are tracked in real time by the Company’s systems, reported, recorded, and regularly reconciled against advertiser data either in real time or
at various contractually defined periods, whereupon the number of qualified users during such specified period are finalized and adjustments, if any, to
revenue are made.

Additional revenues are generated through revenue-sharing agreements with advertisers who email offers to users provided by the Company from its
proprietary database.

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 605, Revenue Recognition, the Company
recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, collectability is reasonably assured, and
services are performed. Generally, services are deemed to have been performed at the time a qualified lead is delivered to the client.

In the normal course of business, the Company acts as an intermediary in executing transactions with third parties. The determination of whether
revenue should be reported on a gross or net basis is based on an assessment of whether the Company is acting as the principal or an agent in the
Company’s transactions. In determining whether the Company acts as the principal or an agent, the Company follows the accounting guidance of ASC
605-45, Principal Agent Considerations. The determination of whether the Company is acting as a principal or an agent in a transaction involves
judgment and is based on an evaluation of the terms of each arrangement. While not one of the factors individually is considered presumptive or
determinative, because the Company is the primary obligor and is responsible for (1) identifying and contracting with third-party advertisers;
(2) establishing the selling prices of user actions sold; (3) performing all billing and collection activities, including retaining credit risk; and
(4) bearing sole responsibility for media cost even if the Company lacks advertising campaigns to monetize the traffic, the Company acts as the
principal in these arrangements and therefore reports revenue earned and costs incurred related to these transactions on a gross basis.

 
[6] Cost of revenue:

The Company enters into agreements with publishers that enable those publishers to monetize their websites and other advertising inventory through
the placement and/or display of targeted advertising. The Company typically enters into either revenue-sharing arrangements or flat guarantee
arrangements with its publishers. In a 70/30 revenue-sharing arrangement, the Company would generate media costs for the Company equivalent to
70% of the revenue received from the advertisers whose advertisements are placed on a publisher’s website, determined on a cost per action (CPA), cost
per lead (CPL) or cost per click (CPC) basis, as reported by the Company’s systems. In a flat guarantee arrangement, the Company would generate
media costs on a cost per thousand (CPM) or unique user basis, based on a rolling 30-day average, regardless of the revenues generated from such
traffic. In the case of the Company’s O2 properties, the Company buys media (leads) from publishers and advertising platforms on a CPM, CPA or CPC
basis with the intent of generating full-user registration on its O2 sites, regardless of the revenues generated by such leads.
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
 
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 
[7] Concentration of credit risk and other risks:

The elements of the Company’s consolidated financial statements that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and
accounts receivable. The Company places its cash in one financial institution. At times, such cash balances may be in excess of federally insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses and believes that it is not exposed to any significant credit risks with respect to cash.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, there was one customer that accounted for 15% of revenue, and there were three customers that accounted for
more than 12% of outstanding accounts receivable as of December 31, 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, there was one publisher that accounted for 12% of cost of revenue.

 
[8] Accounts receivable and credit policies:

The Company extends credit to customers and generally does not require any security or collateral. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced
amount. The Company carries its accounts receivable balances at net realizable value. Management evaluates the collectability of its accounts
receivable balances on a periodic basis and determines whether to provide an allowance or if any accounts should be written down and charged to
expense as a bad debt. The evaluation is based on a past history of collections, current credit conditions, the length of time the account is past due, and
a history of write-downs. A receivable balance is considered past due if the Company has not received payments based on agreed-upon terms.

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $402 as of December 31, 2014.

 
[9] Property and equipment, net:

Property and equipment are carried at cost less depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are provided
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

 
Description   Estimated Life (Years) 
Software    3 years  
Leasehold Improvements    4 years  
Office equipment    5 years  
Computer equipment    5 years  
Furniture and fixtures    7 years  

Property and equipment at December 31, 2014, consist of the following:
 

Office equipment   $ 63  
Computer equipment    85  
Furniture and fixtures    119  
Leasehold Improvements    149  
Software    760  
Property and equipment    1,176  
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization    (780) 
Property and equipment, net   $ 396  
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
 
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 
[9] Property and equipment, net: (continued)
 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The carrying amount of property and equipment is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Any unrecoverable carrying amounts are adjusted to fair value. During the year ended December 31,
2014, the Company relocated its NYC offices, resulting in a loss on disposal of office equipment and furniture and fixtures of $34.

Costs incurred to develop the Company’s web applications are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the web applications in
accordance with ASC 350-40 and 350-50, Internal-Use Software and Website Development Costs, respectively. These costs consist of expenses
incurred in the creation of the Company’s proprietary platform and various material additions to its functionality during the course of the year. Web
application software development costs are included in property and equipment and are amortized over an estimated useful life of three years. These
capitalized costs are included in software in the table above. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the software costs capitalized were $0. At
December 31, 2014, the Company had capitalized software costs of $111, net of accumulated amortization of $649. The amortization expense is
included within selling, general, and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income.

 
[10] Fair value measurements:

Fair value, clarified in FASB authoritative guidance as an exit price, represents the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As a result, fair value should be determined using a market-based approach, based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability. As a basis for considering these assumptions, the guidance defines a
three-tier value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation methodologies in measuring fair value.

 

 •  Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active, accessible markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 

 •  Level 2 - Other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
 

 •  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring
fair value.

 
[11] Advertising and promotion:

In accordance with ASC 720-35, Advertising Costs, advertising and promotion costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotion expenses of
$490, were recorded in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

 
[12] Accounting for equity-based compensation:

The Company accounts for equity-based compensation granted to employees using the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718,
Compensation – Stock Compensation. Equity-based compensation expense for all equity-based compensation awards is based on the grant date fair
value in accordance with the provisions of ASC 718.
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
 
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 
[13] Deferred rent:

The Company recognizes and records rent expense related to its lease agreements, which include scheduled rent increases, on a straight-line basis
beginning on the commencement date over the life of the lease. Differences between straight-line rent expense and actual rent payments are recorded as
accrued expenses and deferred rent liability and presented as a current liability in the consolidated balance sheets.

 
[14] Income taxes:

The Company has elected to be treated as an S corporation for federal and state income tax reporting purposes. Accordingly, no material federal or state
provision for income taxes is recorded in these financial statements, and income and expense items are reported to stockholders in accordance with
Subchapter S of Chapter 1 of the Internal Revenue Code (Sections 1361 through 1379). The Company is, however, subject to New York City corporate
income tax on all income in New York City.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recorded to
reflect the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each
balance sheet date, based on enacted tax laws and statutory rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable
income. The assessment of the realizability of deferred tax assets involves a high degree of judgment and complexity. Valuation allowances are
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts that are expected to be realized. If it is determined that it is more likely than-
not that future tax benefits associated with a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is provided. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income as an adjustment to income
tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

As required by the uncertain tax position guidance in ASC 740, the Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after
determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than-not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-
likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being
realized upon settlement with the relevant tax authority.
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
 
NOTE C - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 

[1] Fluent Media Solutions:

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a no payables due to the independent but commonly owned related-party, Fluent Media Solutions. Fluent
Media Solutions, is a publisher with which the Company entered into revenue-sharing arrangements prior to 2014. During 2014, total payments to
Fluent Media Solutions for media costs were $294.

 
[2] Captive insurance companies:

In 2013, the Company entered into agreements with two related-party captive insurance companies to insure risks that were not otherwise insurable
with commercially available policies. These related-parties, Whitehall Insurance Company, Ltd (Whitehall) and RMS Insurance Company, Ltd (RMS)
(collectively, the Captives), are under common control with the Company. Whitehall is owned by three of the Company’s shareholders, and RMS is
wholly owned by Ryan Schulke, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and 55% shareholder, who is also Treasurer of both Captives.

In 2014, the Company entered into an agreement with Ramp Up Insurance Company, Ltd (Ramp Up), an additional related-party captive insurance
company, to insure risks that were not otherwise insurable with commercially available policies. Ramp Up is owned by all four of the Company
shareholders and four employees. Ryan Schulke is also the Treasurer of Ramp Up.

During December 2014, the Company paid premiums of $3,246 to the three Captives for 11 policies covering the policy period December 30, 2014 to
December 29, 2015. As of December 31, 2014, $3,228 is recorded as prepaid expenses and other current assets and presented as a current asset in the
consolidated balance sheet.

 
[3] Loans to shareholders:

In 2012, the Company loaned $194 to two shareholders to pay the taxes on the 2011 transfer of 1,800,000 shares of common stock to these
shareholders. In 2014, the Company loaned $260 to one shareholder to pay the taxes on the 2013 transfer of 432,000 shares of common stock to the
shareholder. Shareholder loans are included in other noncurrent assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

NOTE D - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 

[1] Leases:

During 2012, the Company leased office space at three separate locations, all subject to noncancellable operating leases. The leases require, among
other things, the payment of minimum annual rentals and portions of the real estate taxes and insurance, maintenance, and other operating expenses
related to the property. In January 2012, the Company amended a lease agreement to obtain an adjoining floor in the second New York City office
space; the leases for both New York City offices expired in January 2014. In December 2013, the Company entered into a lease agreement for a new
office location in New York City. The lease requires, among other things, the payment of minimum annual rentals and the Company’s proportionate
share of the taxes and other operating expenses related to the property. The lease will expire in November 2017. Also, in December 2014, the Company
entered into a lease agreement for an office located in White Plains, New York. The lease will expire in November 2015. The Company recognizes rent
expense related to both lease agreements on a straight-line basis over the lease period.
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NOTE D - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
 
[1] Leases (CONTINUED):
 

As of December 31, 2014, the minimum annual rental payments under the terms of the leases are as follows:
 

Year Ending
December 31     
2015   $ 532  
2016    524  
2017    480  
Total minimum lease payments   $1,536  

The Company recognized rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease periods. For the year ended December 31, 2014, rent expense for the office
facilities was $523.

 
[2] Legal contingencies:

During the normal course of its business, the Company is occasionally involved with various claims and litigation. Reserves are established in
connection with such matters when a loss is probable and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. The determination of probability and
the estimation of the actual amount of any such loss are inherently unpredictable, and it is therefore possible that the eventual outcome of such claims
and litigation could exceed the estimated reserves. Based upon the Company’s experience, current information, and applicable law, it does not believe
it is reasonably possible that any proceedings and claims will have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

 
[3] Guarantee:

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no receivables due from US Digital (USD), an independent but commonly owned related-party. USD is a
premium mobile content provider that contracted with a mobile billing aggregator, Mobile Messenger U.S. Inc. (Mobile Messenger), to provide full-
service content, customer service and billing relationships with the major mobile carriers. Mobile Messenger withheld payment to USD for leads
generated through the course of 2012.

On June 18, 2013, the Company guaranteed the obligation of USD to indemnify Mobile Messenger under a corporate guarantee to induce Mobile
Messenger to release funds to USD that it was holding and that USD owed to the Company for lead generation services. Under the agreement signed
between USD and Mobile Messenger, USD indemnified Mobile Messenger for certain claims attributable to the operation of the premium short
message service (PSMS) service. The Company provided lead generation services to USD.

To date, Mobile Messenger has sent two notices to USD and the Company reiterating USD’s duty of indemnification and the Company’s guarantee
thereof but has not demanded indemnification. Based upon the Company’s current information, the Company is unable to predict whether Mobile
Messenger will seek indemnification, and if it does, the amount that it will seek to collect from USD and/or the Company. USD and the Company
believe that they have valid defenses to any claim that they owe a duty to indemnify Mobile Messenger for the claims asserted. Moreover, even if it is
determined that USD and/or the Company owe a duty to indemnify Mobile Messenger, the Company believes that USD’s PSMS revenues made up
only a small portion of the aggregate PSMS billings processed by Mobile Messenger, and any indemnification obligation would be based on USD’s
proportionate share of Mobile Messenger’s aggregate billings.
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NOTE E - BORROWINGS ON LINE OF CREDIT

In September 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with Bank of America for a $2,000 revolving line of credit. Under the agreement, the Company
may repay principal amounts and re-borrow them at any point during the availability period. The revolving line of credit expired on September 30, 2013.

On August 23, 2013, the Company amended the revolving line of credit agreement and extended it to September 2014. All other terms remained consistent
with the original agreement.

On June 18, 2014, the Company amended the revolving line of credit agreement to provide for an additional $2,000 of borrowings and extended the maturity
date of the line of credit to September 2015. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had borrowed $2,000 against the available $4,000 on the revolving line
of credit.

NOTE F - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In July 2011, the Company granted to three employees options to purchase, in aggregate, 787,500 common shares at a price of $0.01 per share. The options
have a seven-year expiration date and vest over a two-and-one-half-year term from the grant date, subject to various performance criteria; however, exercise,
in all circumstances, is restricted to the earlier of a change of control by a noncurrent shareholder or a listing of the Company’s common stock on a public
exchange. Since the performance criteria were not achieved in 2013, no compensation expense has been recorded. In January 2014, the vesting period
expired, and as the performance condition was not met, the options were cancelled.

NOTE G - STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS PLAN

On January 1, 2014, the company established a Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) plan to retain and reward key employees. The Company authorized the
issuance of up to 1,500,000 SARs. The SAR plan allows the SAR holders to participate in the proceeds of certain future sale transactions involving the
Company, but the SARs do not have any of the rights or privileges of equity ownership and are not marketable or generally transferable under the plan. The
payout on a trigger event is equal to an allocable share of the consideration from a trigger event reduced by the base value of the Company as determined by
an independent third-party as of December 31, 2013. The plan also provides for a payout if the employment of a holder of vested SARs is terminated for any
reason other than cause.

On January 1, 2014, 375,000 SARs were awarded to three employees. During the course of 2014, 225,000 SARs were canceled and returned to the eligible
pool. On January 1, 2015, 50,000 SARs are scheduled to vest. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded no compensation expense or
related liability in connection with the issued SARs.

On January 1, 2015, the Company issued an additional 500,245 SARs to qualified employees and issued an additional 50,000 SARs to one key employee.

NOTE H - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company’s subsequent events were evaluated through April 27, 2015, when the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fluent, Inc. and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Fluent, Inc. and
subsidiaries at December 31, 2013 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
June 24, 2014



Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 

   
December 31

2013  
Assets   
Current assets:   

Cash   $ 1,448  
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $574    8,585  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    440  
Prepaid to related party    2,272  

Total current assets    12,745  

Property and equipment, net    429  
Other noncurrent assets    543  
Intangible assets    —    
Goodwill    —    
Total assets   $ 13,717  
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity   
Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable   $ 2,005  
Due to related party    294  
Accrued expenses and deferred rent liability    2,075  
Borrowings on line of credit    600  
Income taxes payable    —    

Total current liabilities    4,974  
Deferred tax liabilities, net    132  
Total liabilities    5,106  

Stockholders’ equity:   
Common stock, $.01 par value: 15,000,000 shares authorized; 13,500,000 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2013    135  
Subscription receivable    (135) 
Additional paid-in capital    908  
Retained earnings    7,703  

Total stockholders’ equity    8,611  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 13,717  

See accompanying notes.
 

2



Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
(Amounts in Thousands)

 
   Year Ended December 31  
   2013    2012  
Revenue   $ 52,605    $ 45,269  
Cost of revenue    36,078     32,064  
Gross profit    16,527     13,205  

Selling, general, and administrative expenses    12,272     8,740  
Impairment of Net Song assets    248     —    
Operating income    4,007     4,465  

Interest income, net    15     25  
Income before income taxes    4,022     4,490  

Provision for income taxes    312     419  
Net income    3,710     4,071  
Comprehensive income   $ 3,710    $ 4,071  

See accompanying notes.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 

   Common Stock    
Additional

Paid-in    Retained    
   Shares    Amount   Capital    Earnings  Total  
Balance, January 1, 2012    13,500,000    $ —      $ 561    $ 4,459   $ 5,020  

Net income    —       —       —       4,071    4,071  
Distributions    —       —       —       (2,891)   (2,891) 

Balance, December 31, 2012    13,500,000     —       561     5,639    6,200  
Stock-based compensation      —       347     —      347  
Net income    —       —       —       3,710    3,710  
Distributions    —       —       —       (1,646)   (1,646) 

Balance, December 31, 2013    13,500,000    $ —      $ 908    $ 7,703   $ 8,611  

See accompanying notes.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Amounts in Thousands)

 
   Year Ended December 31  
   2013   2012  
Operating activities    
Net income   $ 3,710   $ 4,071  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    293    177  
Impairment of Net Song assets    248    —    
Stock-based compensation    347    —    
Deferred taxes    132    —    
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Accounts receivable    (3,073)   (1,369) 
Prepaid expenses and other current and noncurrent assets    (263)   (250) 
Prepaid to related party    (2,272)   —    
Accounts payable    101    560  
Due to related party    82    107  
Accrued expenses and deferred rent liability    844    (58) 
Income taxes    (350)   (74) 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities    (201)   3,164  

Investing activities    
Capital expenditures    (18)   (363) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment    4    —    
Purchase of Net Song, net of cash acquired    —      (255) 
Net cash used in investing activities    (14)   (618) 

Financing activities    
Loan commitment fee    (10)   (10) 
Borrowings on line of credit    400    200  
Stockholder distributions    (1,646)   (2,891) 
Net cash used in financing activities    (1,256)   (2,701) 
Net decrease in cash    (1,471)   (155) 
Cash at beginning of year    2,919    3,074  
Cash at end of year   $ 1,448   $ 2,919  
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information    
Cash paid during the year for income taxes   $ 525   $ 485  

See accompanying notes.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

December 31, 2013

1. Organization and Nature of Business

Fluent, Inc. (collectively with its subsidiaries, the Company) was incorporated in Delaware on August 19, 2010, and has elected to be treated as an S
corporation. It formally commenced operations in September 2010.

The Company provides performance-based digital advertising and marketing services and solutions to advertisers, publishers, and advertising agencies using
proprietary and third-party platforms. The Company’s proprietary-hosted solutions deliver performance-based services to advertisers and provide enhanced
monetization for publishers (websites and other content owners) through the use of its internally developed technologies and methods that are capable of
segmenting users and serving targeted advertisements online, on mobile devices, and via other media. As part of its proprietary solutions, the Company also
owns and operates its own websites (O2), which provide users with promotional offers, information such as job listings, and offers for other goods and services
using its targeted ad serving capabilities.

The Company also provides third-party solutions through its affiliate network and other brokered services.

The Company’s customers are primarily located in the United States. The Company is headquartered in the state of New York.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fluent, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, American Prize Center, LLC (APC); Reward
Zone USA, LLC (RZU); and Net Song, Ltd (Net Song). The operating results of APC have been included since its incorporation on August 27, 2012. The
operating results of RZU have been included since the date of the contribution agreement of March 1, 2013. The operations of Net Song have been included
since the acquisition date of October 1, 2012. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2012 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2013 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates include depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense, unbilled revenue,
income tax provision, and certain accrued expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company utilizes fair value measurements when required. The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, other noncurrent
assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and borrowing on line of credit approximate their respective fair values as of December 31, 2013, due to their
short-term nature.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with terms detailed in advertiser agreements and/or the attendant insertion order(s). These terms typically call for a
specific payout per user based on a predefined user action (for example, a registration, a toolbar download, a newsletter sign-up) subject to certain qualifying
conditions (most significant, each user must be validated and/or unique to the client’s existing database). These user actions are tracked in real time by the
Company’s systems, reported, recorded, and regularly reconciled against advertiser data either in real time or at various contractually defined periods
whereupon the number of qualified users during such specified period are finalized and adjustments, if any, to revenue are made. Additional revenues are
generated through revenue-sharing agreements with advertisers who email offers to users provided by the Company from its proprietary database.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 605, Revenue Recognition, the Company
recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, collectability is reasonably assured, and services are
performed. Generally, services are deemed to have been performed at the time a qualified lead is delivered to the client.

In the normal course of business, the Company acts as an intermediary in executing transactions with third parties. The determination of whether revenue
should be reported on a gross or net basis is based on an assessment of whether the Company is acting as the principal or an agent in the Company’s
transactions. In determining whether the Company acts as the principal or an agent, the Company follows the accounting guidance of ASC 605-45, Principal
Agent Considerations. The determination of whether the Company is acting as a principal or an agent in a transaction involves judgment and is based on an
evaluation of the terms of each arrangement. While not one of the factors individually is considered presumptive or determinative, because the Company is
the primary obligor and is responsible for (1) identifying and contracting with third-party advertisers; (2) establishing the selling prices of user action sold;
(3) performing all billing and collection activities, including retaining credit risk; and (4) bearing sole responsibility for fulfillment of the advertising
inventory even if the Company lacks advertising campaigns to monetize the traffic, the Company acts as the principal in these arrangements and therefore
reports revenue earned and costs incurred related to these transactions on a gross basis.

Cost of Revenue

The Company enters into agreements with publishers that enable those publishers to monetize their websites and other advertising inventory through the
placement and/or display of targeted advertising. The Company typically enters into either revenue-sharing arrangements or flat guarantee arrangements with
its publishers. In a 70/30 revenue-sharing arrangement, the Company would generate media costs for the Company equivalent to 70% of the revenue received
from the advertisers whose advertisements are placed on a publisher’s website, determined on a cost per action (CPA) or cost per lead (CPL) basis, as reported
by the Company’s systems. In a flat guarantee arrangement, the Company would generate media costs on a cost per thousand (CPM) or unique user basis,
based on a rolling 30-day average, regardless of the revenues generated from such traffic. In the case of the Company’s O2 properties, the Company buys
media (leads) from publishers based on partial and full-user registration on its O2 sites, regardless of the revenues generated by such leads.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
Concentration of Credit Risk and Other Risks

The elements of the Company’s consolidated financial statements that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and accounts
receivable. The Company places its cash in one financial institution. At times, such cash balances may be in excess of federally insured limits. The Company
has not experienced any losses and believes that it is not exposed to any significant credit risks with respect to cash.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, there were no customers that accounted for more than 10% of revenue, and there was one customer that accounted for
10% of outstanding accounts receivables as of December 31, 2013. For the year ended December 31, 2012, there were two customers that accounted for 45%
of revenue, and there was one customer that accounted for 12% of outstanding accounts receivables as of December 31, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, there was one publisher that accounted for 17% of cost of revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2012, there were
no publishers that accounted for more than 10% of cost of revenue.

Accounts Receivable and Credit Policies

The Company extends credit to customers and generally does not require any security or collateral. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount.
The Company carries its accounts receivable balances at net realizable value. Management evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable balances on
a periodic basis and determines whether to provide an allowance or if any accounts should be written down and charged to expense as a bad debt. The
evaluation is based on a past history of collections, current credit conditions, the length of time the account is past due, and a history of write-downs. A
receivable balance is considered past due if the Company has not received payments based on agreed-upon terms.

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $574 as of December 31, 2013.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are carried at cost less depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are provided using
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
 

Description   Estimated Life (Years) 
Software    3 years  
Office equipment    5 years  
Computer equipment    5 years  
Furniture and fixtures    7 years  

Property and equipment at December 31, 2013, consist of the following:
 

   2013  
Office equipment   $ 71  
Computer equipment    61  
Furniture and fixtures    51  
Software    760  
Property and equipment    943  
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization    (514) 
Property and equipment, net   $ 429  

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The carrying amount of property and equipment is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the
use and eventual disposition of the asset. Any unrecoverable carrying amounts are adjusted to fair value. During the year ended December 31, 2013, property
and equipment of $30 were fully impaired as a result of the dissolution of Net Song and disposal of its assets.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
Costs incurred to develop the Company’s web applications are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the web applications in
accordance with ASC 350-40 and 350-50, Internal-Use Software and Website Development Costs, respectively. These costs consist of expenses incurred in
the creation of the Company’s proprietary platform and various material additions to its functionality during the course of the year. Web application software
development costs are included in property and equipment and are amortized over an estimated useful life of three years. These capitalized costs are included
in software in the table above. During the years ended December 31, 2013, the software costs capitalized were $0. At December 31, 2013, the Company had
capitalized software costs of $320, net of accumulated amortization of $440. The amortization expense is included within selling, general, and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of Net Song over the fair value of the underlying net tangible and intangible assets. Goodwill is
evaluated for impairment annually, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of the goodwill may not be recoverable.

In accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other, an initial qualitative analysis is performed to evaluate whether any events and circumstances
occurred or exist that provide evidence that is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, based on this
analysis, indicators deem it not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, no quantitative impairment test is
performed. However, if the results determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, a two-step
quantitative impairment test is performed. During the year ended December 31, 2012, goodwill of $157 was recorded in connection with the acquisition of
Net Song. During the year ended December 31, 2013, goodwill of $157 was impaired as a result of the dissolution of Net Song and disposal of its assets (see
Note 5).
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
Intangible assets of $61 consist of identifiable intangible software assets resulting from the Company’s acquisition of Net Song. These intangible software
assets acquired from Net Song, classified as in-process R&D, were considered indefinite-lived intangible assets. These assets were valued according to fair
value, which is defined in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement. During the year ended December 31, 2013, intangible assets of $61 were fully impaired based
on the determination that they provided no future financial benefit to the Company as market saturation eroded the potential value of these assets (see
Note 5).

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value, clarified in FASB authoritative guidance as an exit price, represents the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants. As a result, fair value should be determined using a market-based approach, based on assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability. As a basis for considering these assumptions, the guidance defines a three-tier value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation methodologies in measuring fair value.
 

 •  Level 1 – unadjusted quoted prices in active, accessible markets for identical assets or liabilities
 

 •  Level 2 – other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace
 

 •  Level 3 – unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.

Advertising and Promotion

In accordance with ASC 720-35, Advertising Costs, advertising and promotion costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotion expenses of $312
and $620, respectively, were recorded in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
Accounting for Equity-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for equity-based compensation granted to employees using the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, Compensation – Stock
Compensation. Equity-based compensation expense for all equity-based compensation awards is based on the grant date fair value in accordance with the
provisions of ASC 718.

Deferred Rent

The Company recognizes and records rent expense related to its lease agreements, which include scheduled rent increases, on a straight-line basis beginning
on the commencement date over the life of the lease. Differences between straight-line rent expense and actual rent payments are recorded as deferred rent
liability and presented as a current liability in the consolidated balance sheets.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treated as an S corporation for federal and state income tax reporting purposes. Accordingly, no material federal or state
provision for income taxes is recorded in these financial statements, and income and expense items are reported to stockholders in accordance with
Subchapter S of Chapter 1 of the Internal Revenue Code (Sections 1361 through 1379). The Company is, however, subject to New York City corporate
income tax on all income in New York City.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect the
tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each balance sheet date,
based on enacted tax laws and statutory rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. The assessment of the
realizability of deferred tax assets involves a high degree of judgment and complexity. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amounts that are expected to be realized. If it is determined that it is more likely than not that future tax benefits associated with a
deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is provided. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income as an adjustment to income tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
 
As required by the uncertain tax position guidance in ASC 740, the Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after
determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-likely-
than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
settlement with the relevant tax authority.

3. Related-Party Transactions

The Company engages in activities with related-parties on an arm’s-length basis.

US Digital (USD)

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had receivables due from USD, an independent but commonly owned related-party, in the amount of $430, which
were fully reserved. USD is a premium mobile content provider that contracted with a mobile billing aggregator, Mobile Messenger U.S. Inc. (Mobile
Messenger), to provide full-service content, customer service, and billing relationships with the major mobile carriers. Mobile Messenger withheld payment
to USD for leads generated throughout the course of 2012. See Note 4 for further information regarding USD and Mobile Messenger. During 2013 and 2012,
revenue earned from providing services to USD aggregated $0 and $1,132, respectively. No additional transactions occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Fluent Media Solutions

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had a payable due to an independent but commonly owned related-party in the amount of $294. The related-party,
Fluent Media Solutions, is a publisher with which the Company entered into revenue-sharing arrangements in 2013 and 2012. During 2013 and 2012, total
payments to Fluent Media Solutions for media costs were $341 and $655, respectively.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
3. Related-Party Transactions (continued)
 
Captive Insurance Companies

In 2013, the Company entered into agreements with two related-party captive insurance companies to insure risks that were not otherwise insurable with
commercially available policies. These related-parties, Whitehall Insurance Company, Ltd (Whitehall) and RMS Insurance Company, Ltd (RMS)
(collectively, the Captives), are under common control with the Company. Whitehall is owned by three of the Company shareholders, and RMS is wholly
owned by Ryan Schulke, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and 55% shareholder, who is also Treasurer of both Captives. During December 2013, the
Company paid premiums of $2,284 to the Captives for 11 policies covering the policy period December 30, 2013 to December 29, 2014. As of December 31,
2013, $2,272 are recorded as prepaid to related party and presented as current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Loans to Shareholders

In 2012, the Company loaned $194 to two shareholders to pay the taxes on the 2011 transfer of 1,800,000 shares of common stock to these shareholders.
Shareholder loans are included in other noncurrent assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The loans accrue interest at 0.25% per year and are due within 3
years or earlier if there is a change of control by a noncurrent shareholder or a listing of the Company’s common stock on a public exchange.

4. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

During 2012, the Company leased office space at three separate locations, all subject to noncancellable operating leases. The leases require, among other
things, the payment of minimum annual rentals and portions of the real estate taxes and insurance, maintenance, and other operating expenses related to the
property. In January 2012, the Company amended a lease agreement to obtain an adjoining floor in the second New York City office space; the leases for
both New York City offices expired in January 2014. In December 2013, the Company entered into a lease agreement with Medley Global Advisors, LLC for
the entire 15th floor in the building located at 33 Whitehall Street in New York City. The lease requires, among other things, the payment of minimum annual
rentals and the Company’s proportionate share of the taxes and other operating expenses related to the property. The lease will expire in November 2017.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
4. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
 
Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

As of December 31, 2013, the minimum annual rental payments under the terms of the leases are as follows:
 

Year ending December 31:   
2014   $ 340  
2015    524  
2016    524  
2017    480  

Total minimum lease payments   $1,868  

The Company recognized rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease periods. For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, rent expense for the
office facilities was $593 and $490, respectively.

Legal Contingencies

During the normal course of its business, the Company is occasionally involved with various claims and litigation. Reserves are established in connection
with such matters when a loss is probable and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. The determination of probability and the estimation of
the actual amount of any such loss are inherently unpredictable, and it is therefore possible that the eventual outcome of such claims and litigation could
exceed the estimated reserves. Based upon the Company’s experience, current information, and applicable law, it does not believe it is reasonably possible
that any proceedings and claims will have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Guarantee

On June 18, 2013, the Company guaranteed the obligation of USD to indemnify Mobile Messenger under a corporate guarantee to induce Mobile Messenger
to release funds to USD that it was holding and that USD owed to the Company for lead generation services. Under the agreement signed between USD and
Mobile Messenger, USD indemnified Mobile Messenger for certain claims attributable to the operation of the premium short message service (PSMS) service.
The Company provided lead generation services to USD.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
4. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
 
To date, Mobile Messenger has sent two notices to USD and the Company reiterating USD’s duty of indemnification and the Company’s guarantee thereof
but has not demanded indemnification. Based upon the Company’s current information, the Company is unable to predict whether Mobile Messenger will
seek indemnification, and if it does, the amount that it will seek to collect from USD and/or the Company. USD and the Company believe that they have
valid defenses to any claim that they owe a duty to indemnify Mobile Messenger for the claims asserted. Moreover, even if it is determined that USD and/or
the Company owe a duty to indemnify Mobile Messenger, the Company believes that USD’s PSMS revenues made up only a small portion of the aggregate
PSMS billings processed by Mobile Messenger and any indemnification obligation would be based on USD’s proportionate share of Mobile Messenger’s
aggregate billings.

5. Acquisition of Net Song

On October 1, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the equity of Net Song, a Chinese application development entity, from a
related-party for cash consideration of $310. Net Song was acquired from a commonly owned related-party of the Company. The Company acquired Net Song
to increase its IT development bandwidth in support of its core business and to invest in research and development of new technologies. As part of this
transaction, the Company acquired all of the tangible and intangible assets of the Chinese entity and recorded goodwill according to ASC 805, Business
Combinations.

The aggregate purchase price of $310 was allocated as follows:
 

Goodwill   $ 157  
Intangible assets    61  
Cash    55  
Fixed assets, net    29  
Other assets    23  
Accounts payable    (15) 

  $ 310  
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
5. Acquisition of Net Song (continued)
 
In September 2013, the Company decided to cease operations of Net Song due to operational underperformance. In accordance with this decision, the
goodwill balance recorded in the transaction was deemed to be impaired and was written down to zero. The intangible assets acquired were also fully
impaired based on the determination that they provided no future financial benefit to the Company as market saturation eroded the potential value of these
assets.

6. Borrowings on Line of Credit

In September 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with Bank of America for a $2,000 revolving line of credit. Under the agreement, the Company
may repay principal amounts and re-borrow them at any point during the availability period. The revolving line of credit expired on September 30, 2013.

On August 23, 2013, the Company amended the revolving line of credit agreement and extended it to September 2014. All other terms remained consistent
with the original agreement. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had borrowed $600 against the revolving line of credit.

7. Stock-Based Compensation

In July 2011, the Company granted to three employees options to purchase, in aggregate, 787,500 common shares at a price of $0.01 per share. The options
have a seven-year expiration date and vest over a two-and-one-half-year term from the grant date, subject to various performance criteria; however, exercise,
in all circumstances, is restricted to the earlier of a change of control by a noncurrent shareholder or a listing of the Company’s common stock on a public
exchange. Since the performance criteria were not achieved in 2013, no compensation expense has been recorded. In January 2014, the vesting period
expired, and as the performance condition was not met, the options were cancelled.

In June 2013, the Company amended its shareholder agreement to reflect the transfer of 432,000 common shares to a non-shareholder employee. In
accordance with the provisions of ASC 718, for compensation expense purposes, the fair value of the shares transferred was estimated using a discounted cash
flow model under the income approach.
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Fluent, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share Data)

 
7. Stock-Based Compensation (continued)
 
The following table summarizes the assumptions used to determine the fair value of the shares:
 

Long-term growth rate    3.0% 
Cost of capital    35.0% 
Discount for lack of marketability    40.0% 

The Company recognized the full amount of stock-based compensation expense related to this award of $347 for the year ended December 31, 2013, as the
shares were fully vested upon issuance.

8. Subsequent Events

The Company’s subsequent events were evaluated through June 24, 2014, when the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. No
additional evaluation for subsequent events was performed for the entity after June 24, 2014.

In 2014, the Company loaned the shareholder, who had been transferred 432,000 common shares in June 2013 (see Note 7), an aggregate of $260 to pay the
taxes related to the stock-based compensation and for other purposes. The loan accrues interest at 0.35% per year and is due on demand or earlier if there is a
change of control by a noncurrent shareholder or a listing of the Company’s common stock on a public exchange.
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
(amounts in thousands, except share data)
 
   September 30 
   2015  
   (Unaudited)  
ASSETS   

Current assets:   
Cash   $ 7,422  
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $609 and $402 respectively    21,133  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    1,225  
Income tax receivable    —    

Total current assets    29,780  

Property and equipment, net    575  
Other noncurrent assets    763  

Total assets   $ 31,118  
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

Current liabilities:   
Accounts payable   $ 2,912  
Accrued expenses and deferred rent liability    7,918  
Borrowings on line of credit    —    
Income Taxes Payable    932  

Total current liabilities    11,762  
Deferred tax liabilities, net    211  

Total liabilities    11,973  

Stockholders’ equity:   
Additional paid-in capital    908  
Retained earnings    18,237  

Total stockholders’ equity    19,145  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 31,118  

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
(amounts in thousands)
 

   
Nine months Ended

September 30  
   2015  
   (Unaudited)  
Revenue   $ 103,038  
Cost of revenue    75,201  
Gross profit    27,837  

Selling, general, and administrative expenses    17,908  
Loss on disposal of assets    —    
Operating income    9,929  

Interest income, net    (5) 
Income before income taxes    9,924  

Provision for income taxes    1,086  
Net income   $ 8,838  
Comprehensive income   $ 8,838  

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands)
 

   
Nine Months Ended

September 30,  
   2015  
   (Unaudited)  
Operating activities:   

Net income   $ 8,838  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:   

Depreciation and amortization    164  
Loss on disposal of assets    —    
Deferred taxes    —    
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   

Accounts receivable    (7,813) 
Prepaid expenses and other current and noncurrent assets    2,257  
Accounts payable    (1,912) 
Accrued expenses and deferred rent liability    3,675  
Income taxes    1,082  

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities    6,291  

Investing activities:   
Capital expenditures    (343) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment    —    

Net cash used in investing activities    (343) 

Financing activities:   
(Repayments of) borrowings on line of credit    (2,000) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    (2,000) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash    3,948  
Cash at beginning of year    3,474  
Cash at end of period   $ 7,422  

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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FLUENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTE A – UNAUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and footnotes required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal
recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The information included in this interim report should be read in
conjunction with the Financial Statements and footnotes for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Operating results for the nine-months period ended September 30, 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
[1] Basis of preparation:

These condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
 
[2] Principles of consolidation:

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fluent, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, American Prize Center, LLC
(APC); Reward Zone USA, LLC (RZU); NetSong, Ltd (Net Song); and Deliver Technology, LLC (DT). The operating results of RZU have been
included since the date of the contribution agreement of March 1, 2013. The operating results of DT have been included since the date of the
contribution agreement of February 1, 2014. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

 
[3] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates include depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense,
unbilled revenue, income tax provision, revenue reserves and certain accrued expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

 
[4] Fair value of financial instruments:

The Company utilizes fair value measurements when required. The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, other noncurrent
assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and borrowing on line of credit approximate their respective fair values as of September 30, 2015 due to
their short-term nature.

 
[5] Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized in accordance with terms detailed in advertiser agreements and/or the attendant insertion order(s). These terms typically call for
a specific payout per conversion based on a predefined user action (for example, a registration, a toolbar download, a newsletter sign-up, or click-
through) subject to certain qualifying conditions (most significant, each user must be validated and/or unique to the client’s existing database). These
user actions are tracked in real time by the Company’s systems, reported, recorded, and regularly reconciled against advertiser data either in real time or
at various contractually defined periods, whereupon the number of qualified users during such specified period are finalized and adjustments, if any, to
revenue are made.

Additional revenues are generated through revenue-sharing agreements with advertisers who email offers to users provided by the Company from its
proprietary database.
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In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 605, Revenue Recognition, the Company
recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, collectability is reasonably assured, and
services are performed. Generally, services are deemed to have been performed at the time a qualified lead is delivered to the client.

In the normal course of business, the Company acts as an intermediary in executing transactions with third parties. The determination of whether
revenue should be reported on a gross or net basis is based on an assessment of whether the Company is acting as the principal or an agent in the
Company’s transactions. In determining whether the Company acts as the principal or an agent, the Company follows the accounting guidance of ASC
605-45, Principal Agent Considerations. The determination of whether the Company is acting as a principal or an agent in a transaction involves
judgment and is based on an evaluation of the terms of each arrangement. While not one of the factors individually is considered presumptive or
determinative, because the Company is the primary obligor and is responsible for (1) identifying and contracting with third-party advertisers;
(2) establishing the selling prices of user actions sold; (3) performing all billing and collection activities, including retaining credit risk; and
(4) bearing sole responsibility for media cost even if the Company lacks advertising campaigns to monetize the traffic, the Company acts as the
principal in these arrangements and therefore reports revenue earned and costs incurred related to these transactions on a gross basis.

 
[6] Cost of revenue:

The Company enters into agreements with publishers that enable those publishers to monetize their websites and other advertising inventory through
the placement and/or display of targeted advertising. The Company typically enters into either revenue-sharing arrangements or flat guarantee
arrangements with its publishers. In a 70/30 revenue-sharing arrangement, the Company would generate media costs for the Company equivalent to
70% of the revenue received from the advertisers whose advertisements are placed on a publisher’s website, determined on a cost per action (CPA), cost
per lead (CPL) or cost per click (CPC) basis, as reported by the Company’s systems. In a flat guarantee arrangement, the Company would generate
media costs on a cost per thousand (CPM) or unique user basis, based on a rolling 30-day average, regardless of the revenues generated from such
traffic. In the case of the Company’s Owned Media properties, the Company buys media (leads) from publishers and advertising platforms on a CPM,
CPA or CPC basis with the intent of generating full-user registration on its Owned Media sites, regardless of the revenues generated by such leads.

 
[7] Concentration of credit risk and other risks:

The elements of the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash
and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash in one financial institution. At times, such cash balances may be in excess of federally insured
limits. The Company has not experienced any losses and believes that it is not exposed to any significant credit risks with respect to cash.

 
[8] Accounts receivable and credit policies:

The Company extends credit to customers and generally does not require any security or collateral. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced
amount. The Company carries its accounts receivable balances at net realizable value. Management evaluates the collectability of its accounts
receivable balances on a periodic basis and determines whether to provide an allowance or if any accounts should be written down and charged to
expense as a bad debt. The evaluation is based on a past history of collections, current credit conditions, the length of time the account is past due, and
a history of write-downs. A receivable balance is considered past due if the Company has not received payments based on agreed-upon terms.

 
[9] Property and equipment, net:

Property and equipment are carried at cost less depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are provided
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

 
Description   Estimated Life (Years)                               

Software   3 years                     
Leasehold Improvements      4 years                     
Office equipment   5 years                     
Computer equipment   5 years                     
Furniture and fixtures   7 years                     

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The carrying amount of property and equipment is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Any unrecoverable carrying amounts are adjusted to fair value.
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Costs incurred to develop the Company’s web applications are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the web applications in
accordance with ASC 350-40 and 350-50, Internal-Use Software and Website Development Costs, respectively. These costs consist of expenses
incurred in the creation of the Company’s proprietary platform and various material additions to its functionality during the course of the year. Web
application software development costs are included in property and equipment and are amortized over an estimated useful life of three years. The
amortization expense is included within selling, general, and administrative expenses in the condensed consolidated statement of income and
comprehensive income.

 
[10] Fair value measurements:

Fair value, clarified in FASB authoritative guidance as an exit price, represents the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As a result, fair value should be determined using a market-based approach, based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability. As a basis for considering these assumptions, the guidance defines a
three-tier value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation methodologies in measuring fair value.

 

 •  Level 1—Unadjusted quoted prices in active, accessible markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 •  Level 2—Other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
 •  Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring
fair value.

 
[11] Advertising and promotion:

In accordance with ASC 720-35, Advertising Costs, advertising and promotion costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotion expenses are
recorded in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the condensed consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income.

 
[12] Accounting for equity-based compensation:

The Company accounts for equity-based compensation granted to employees using the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718,
Compensation – Stock Compensation. Equity-based compensation expense for all equity-based compensation awards is based on the grant date fair
value in accordance with the provisions of ASC 718.

 
[13] Deferred rent:

The Company recognizes and records rent expense related to its lease agreements, which include scheduled rent increases, on a straight-line basis
beginning on the commencement date over the life of the lease. Differences between straight-line rent expense and actual rent payments are recorded as
accrued expenses and deferred rent liability and presented as a current liability in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

 
[14] Income taxes:

The Company has elected to be treated as an S corporation for federal and state income tax reporting purposes. Accordingly, no material federal or state
provision for income taxes is recorded in these financial statements, and income and expense items are reported to stockholders in accordance with
Subchapter S of Chapter 1 of the Internal Revenue Code (Sections 1361 through 1379). The Company is, however, subject to New York City corporate
income tax on all income in New York City.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recorded to
reflect the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each
balance sheet date, based on enacted tax laws and statutory rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable
income. The assessment of the realizability of deferred tax assets involves a high degree of judgment and complexity. Valuation allowances are
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts that are expected to be realized. If it is determined that it is more likely than-
not that future tax benefits associated with a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is provided. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income as an adjustment
to income tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

As required by the uncertain tax position guidance in ASC 740, the Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after
determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than-not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-
likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being
realized upon settlement with the relevant tax authority.
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NOTE C – RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 
[1] Captive insurance companies:

In 2013, the Company entered into agreements with two related-party captive insurance companies to insure risks that were not otherwise insurable
with commercially available policies. These related-parties, Whitehall Insurance Company, Ltd (Whitehall) and RMS Insurance Company, Ltd (RMS)
(collectively, the Captives), are under common control with the Company. Whitehall is owned by three of the Company’s shareholders, and RMS is
wholly owned by Ryan Schulke, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and 55% shareholder, who is also Treasurer of both Captives.

In 2014, the Company entered into an agreement with Ramp Up Insurance Company, Ltd (Ramp Up), an additional related-party captive insurance
company, to insure risks that were not otherwise insurable with commercially available policies. Ramp Up is owned by all four of the Company
shareholders and four employees. Ryan Schulke is also the Treasurer of Ramp Up.

During December 2014, the Company paid premiums of $3,246 to the three Captives for 11 policies covering the policy period December 30, 2014 to
December 29, 2015.

 
[2] Loans to shareholders:

In 2012, the Company loaned $194 to two shareholders to pay the taxes on the 2011 transfer of 1,800,000 shares of common stock to these
shareholders. In 2014, the Company loaned $260 to one shareholder to pay the taxes on the 2013 transfer of 432,000 shares of common stock to the
shareholder. Shareholder loans are included in other noncurrent assets on the condensed consolidated balance sheet.

NOTE D – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 16, 2015, IDI, Inc. (“IDI”), Fluent Acquisition I, Inc. (“Merger Sub”), a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned IDI subsidiary, Fluent
Acquisition II, LLC (“Merger Co.”), a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned IDI subsidiary, Fluent, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Fluent”),
Fluent’s existing stockholders (“Sellers”) and Ryan Schulke, solely in his capacity as representative of Sellers, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger
(the “Merger Agreement”), pursuant to which (i) Merger Sub will merge with and into Fluent, with Fluent continuing as the surviving company (the “Initial
Merger”) and then, immediately following consummation of the Initial Merger, (ii) IDI will cause Fluent to merge with and into Merger Co., with Merger Co.
continuing as the surviving company under the name “Fluent, LLC” (individually, the “Subsequent Merger” and collectively with the Initial Merger, the
“Merger” or the “Acquisition”). Subject to the satisfaction of the closing conditions, the Merger is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2015.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at signing, IDI was required to pay, and paid to Fluent, a non-refundable deposit in the amount of $10.0 million cash (the
“Deposit”). At the effective time of the Merger (the “Effective Time”), Sellers shall receive (i) 300,000 shares of the Company’s Series B Non-Voting
Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 (the “Series B Preferred”), convertible into 15,000,000 shares of IDI’s common stock, par value $0.0005 (the
“Common Stock,” and such shares of Common Stock, the “Conversion Shares”) and (ii) $100.0 million in cash, less the Deposit. The number of shares of
Series B Preferred and number of Conversion Shares are subject to increase to the extent that the closing price of Common Stock on the trading day
immediately prior to the Effective Time is less than $6.67 per share. Also, the cash payable to Sellers at the Effective Time is subject to adjustment for
working capital and reduction for indemnification obligations (capped at $2.0 million). In addition, at the Effective Time, IDI will pay from the cash portion
of the purchase price otherwise payable to Sellers, any outstanding Fluent indebtedness, the expenses of Sellers’ representative, certain amounts to holders of
vested and unvested stock appreciation rights and any change of control payments due to certain Fluent employees and consultants.
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Exhibit 99.5

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On November 16, 2015, IDI, Fluent Acquisition I, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub”), Fluent
Acquisition II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Co.”), Fluent, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“Fluent”), Fluent’s existing stockholders (“Sellers”) and Ryan Schulke, solely in his capacity as representative of Sellers, entered into an
Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”), pursuant to which (i) Merger Sub will merge with and into Fluent, with Fluent continuing as the
surviving company (the “Initial Merger”) and then, immediately following consummation of the Initial Merger, (ii) the Company will cause Fluent to merge
with and into Merger Co., with Merger Co. continuing as the surviving company under the name “Fluent, LLC” (individually, the “Subsequent Merger” and
collectively with the Initial Merger, the “Merger” or the “Acquisition”). Subject to the satisfaction of the closing conditions, the Merger is expected to close
in the fourth quarter of 2015. A description of the Merger Agreement is set forth in the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 19, 2015, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at signing, the Company was required to pay, and paid to Fluent, a non-refundable deposit in the amount of $10.0
million cash (the “Deposit”). At the effective time of the Merger (the “Effective Time”), Sellers shall receive (i) 300,000 shares of the Company’s Series B
Non-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 (the “Series B Preferred”), convertible into 15,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock,
par value $0.0005 (the “Common Stock,” and such shares of Common Stock, the “Conversion Shares”) and (ii) $100.0 million in cash, less the Deposit. The
number of shares of Series B Preferred and number of Conversion Shares are subject to increase to the extent that the closing price of Common Stock on the
trading day immediately prior to the Effective Time is less than $6.67 per share. Also, the cash payable to Sellers at the Effective Time is subject to
adjustment for working capital and reduction for indemnification obligations (capped at $2.0 million). In addition, at the Effective Time, the Company will
pay from the cash portion of the purchase price otherwise payable to Sellers, any outstanding Fluent indebtedness, the expenses of Sellers’ representative,
certain amounts to holders of vested and unvested stock appreciation rights and any change of control payments due to certain Fluent employees and
consultants.

On November 16, 2015, the Company raised approximately $10.0 million in gross proceeds from the sale of 29,985 shares of the Company’s Series B
Preferred and warrants to purchase up to 749,625 shares of the Common Stock (each, a “Warrant,” and collectively, the “Warrants”) pursuant to securities
purchase agreements (each, a “Securities Purchase Agreement,” and collectively, the “Securities Purchase Agreements”). Each Warrant is exercisable in whole
in part at any time from the date that is the twenty first (21st) day following the mailing of an information statement to the Company’s stockholders
disclosing the Company’s stockholder approval of the issuance of the Conversion Shares until November 16, 2025. Approximately $7.0 million of such gross
proceeds was raised pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and Frost Gamma Investments Trust (“Frost Gamma”), an affiliate of
Phillip Frost, M.D., a greater than 10% owner of the Company, pursuant to which Frost Gamma received (i) 20,990 shares of Series B Preferred and (ii) a
Warrant to purchase up to 524,750 shares of Common Stock, with an exercise price of $6.67 per share of Common Stock. The additional $3.0 million of such
proceeds was raised pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreements between the Company and other participants in the private placement on the same terms
provided to Frost Gamma. In aggregate, such other participants received (i) 8,995 shares of Series B Preferred and (ii) Warrants to purchase up to 224,875
shares of Common Stock.

Also, on November 16, 2015, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement for the sale of 119,940 shares of Series B Preferred to Frost
Gamma in exchange for approximately $40.0 million.

The following Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements are based on the historical financial statements of IDI and Fluent after
giving effect to (i) the Company’s pending acquisition of Fluent as of November 16, 2015, as well as (ii) the issuance of stock under the terms of the Offering
and the assumptions, reclassifications and adjustments described in the accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial
Statements. The unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2015 gives effect to the Merger of IDI and Fluent as if the
Merger had occurred on that date. The unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2015
and for the period from September 22, 2014 (inception) until December 31, 2014 give effect to the Merger of IDI and Fluent as if the Merger had occurred on
January 1, 2014. The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with IDI’s historical consolidated
financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 which were filed on Form 10-Q on November 16, 2015 and for the period from
September 22, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014 and the accompanying notes thereto, as filed



as an exhibit to Form 8-K/A, as filed with the SEC on June 5, 2015; (ii) Fluent’s historical financial statements as of and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the accompanying notes thereto attached to this filing (Exhibit 99.3); and (iii) the
accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

IDI will account for the Acquisition as a purchase of Fluent, using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP. Upon completion of the Acquisition, Fluent stockholders will be entitled to receive $100 million dollars
and 300,000 Series B Preferred shares of IDI representing in aggregate approximately 21.8% of the outstanding capital shares of the combined company
following the Acquisition on a fully diluted basis. For the purposes of determining the acquirer for accounting purposes, IDI considered the following factors:
(i) the relative voting rights of the parties - immediately following the Merger, Fluent shareholders will receive 300,000 Series B Preferred shares, which is
fewer than the number of outstanding voting shares held by IDI shareholders prior to the Merger; (ii) the composition of the board of directors of the
combined entity - the number of directors constituting the board of directors of the combined company will be increased to nine directors and the current
seven members, including the Chairman of the Board, will remain the same; and (iii) the composition of senior management of the combined entity after the
Merger (the senior management of IDI will remain the same). Based on the weighting of these factors, IDI has concluded that it is the accounting acquirer.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, as of the Effective Time, the assets acquired, including the identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities
assumed from Fluent will be recorded at their respective fair values and added to those of IDI. Any excess of the purchase price for the Merger over the net fair
value of Fluent’s identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be recorded as goodwill and any transaction costs and restructuring expenses
associated with the Merger will be expensed as incurred. The results of operations of Fluent will be combined with the results of operations of IDI beginning
at the Effective Time. The consolidated financial statements of IDI will not be restated retroactively to reflect the historical financial position or results of
operations of Fluent. Following the Merger, and subject to the finalization of the purchase price allocation, the earnings of IDI will reflect the effect of any
purchase accounting adjustments, including any increased depreciation and amortization associated with fair value adjustments to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

The unaudited pro forma financial data are based on the historical financial statements of IDI and Fluent, and on publicly available information and
certain assumptions that IDI believes are reasonable, which are described in the notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements
included in this proxy statement. IDI has not performed a detailed valuation analysis necessary to determine the fair market values of Fluent’s assets to be
acquired and liabilities to be assumed. For the purpose of the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements, preliminary allocations of
estimated acquisition consideration have been based on the payment of $100 million dollars and the issuance of 300,000 shares of IDI’s Series B Preferred
stock for 100% of the aggregate shares of Fluent. The preliminary acquisition consideration has been allocated to certain assets and liabilities using
management assumptions as further described in the accompanying notes. After the closing of the Merger, IDI will complete their valuations of the fair value
of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed and determine the useful lives of the assets acquired.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements are provided for informational purpose. The pro forma information provided is
not necessarily indicative of what the combined company’s financial position and results of operations would have actually been had the Merger been
completed on the dates used to prepare these pro forma financial statements. The adjustments to fair value and the other estimates reflected in the
accompanying Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements may be materially different from those reflected in the combined company’s
consolidated financial statements subsequent to the Acquisition. In addition, the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements do not
purport to project the future financial position or results of operations of the merged companies. Reclassifications and adjustments may be required if changes
to IDI’s financial presentation are needed to conform IDI’s and Fluent’s accounting policies.

These Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements do not give effect to any anticipated synergies, operating efficiencies or cost
savings that may be associated with the transaction. These financial statements also do not include any integration costs the companies may incur related to
the Merger as part of combining the operations of the companies. The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations do not include an
estimate for transaction costs of approximately $5.0 million.
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IDI, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2015
(unaudited)

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

   

IDI, Inc.
As

reported   

Fluent,
Inc. As

reported    
Pro Forma

Adjustments     
Pro Forma
Combined  

ASSETS         
CURRENT ASSETS         

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 9,078   $ 7,422    $ 45,000   (c)  $ 23,578  
      74,500   (b)  
      (107,422)  (g)  
      (5,000)  (h)  

Accounts receivable, net    610    21,133     —        21,743  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    1,193    1,717     —        2,910  

Total current assets    10,881    30,272     7,078      48,231  
NON-CURRENT ASSETS         
Property and equipment, net    834    574     —        1,408  
Intangible assets, net    3,077    —       127,000   (g)   130,077  
Goodwill    5,227    —       164,487   (g)   169,714  
Other assets    38    271     —        309  
Total non-current assets    9,176    845     291,487      301,508  
Total assets   $ 20,057   $31,117    $ 298,565     $ 349,739  
LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Accounts payable    1,741    2,912     —        4,653  
Accounts payable – related parties    20    —       —        20  
Other current liabilities    —      7,558     —        7,558  

Term loan, current    —      —       2,250   (c)   2,250  

Deferred revenue    150    208     —        358  

Income tax payable    —      932     —        932  
Total current liabilities    1,911    11,610     2,250      15,771  

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Term loan, non-current    —      —       42,750   (c)   42,750  
Non-current Liabilities    —      152     —        152  
Deferred Tax Liability    —      210     48,260   (f)   48,470  
Total liabilities    1,911    11,972     93,260      107,143  
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
Preferred Shares – convertible - $0.0001 par value 10,000,000 shared authorized    —      —       —     (a)   —    

      —     (b)  
Common Shares - $0.0005 par value 200,000,000 shares authorized    8    —       —        8  
Additional paid-in capital    70,644    908     154,950   (a)   300,094  

   —      —       74,500   (b)   —    
   —      —       (908)  (d)   —    

Accumulated earnings / (deficit)    (52,506)   18,237     (18,237)  (d)   (57,506) 
   —      —       (5,000)  (h)   —    

Total shareholders’ equity    18,146    19,145     205,305      242,596  
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity   $ 20,057   $31,117    $ 298,565     $ 349,739  
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IDI, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015
(unaudited)

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

   
IDI, Inc. As

reported   
Fluent, Inc.
As reported  

Pro Forma
Adjustments      

Pro Forma
Combined  

Net revenues   $ 3,254   $ 103,038   $ —       $ 106,292  
Cost of revenues    1,744    75,201    —        76,945  
Gross profit    1,510    27,837    —        29,347  
Operating expenses        
Sales and marketing expenses    1,529    5,424    —        6,953  
General and administrative expenses    9,783    12,484    15,161   (e)    45,604  

     8,176   (e)   
Profit / (loss) from operations    (9,802)   9,929    (23,337)     (23,210) 
Other income / (expense)        
Interest expense, net    (3)   (5)   (3,779)  (e)    (3,787) 
Total other income / (expense)    (3)   (5)   (3,779)     (3,787) 
Profit / (loss) before income taxes    (9,805)   9,924    (27,116)     (26,997) 
Income taxes (benefit) / expense    141    1,086    (11,486)  (f)    (10,259) 
Net Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations   $ (9,946)  $ 8,838   $ (15,630)    $ (16,738) 
Loss per share:        
Basic and diluted   $ (0.82)   —      —       $ (0.48) 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:        
Basic and diluted

   12,167,469    —      22,496,250   
(a)
(b)    34,663,719  
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IDI, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2014
(unaudited)

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

   
IDI, Inc. As
reported (1)   

Fluent, Inc.
As reported  

Pro Forma
Adjustments      

Pro Forma
Combined  

Net revenues   $ 817   $ 67,965   $ —       $ 68,782  
Cost of revenues    340    49,152    —        49,492  
Gross profit / (loss)    477    18,813    —        19,290  
Operating expenses    —      —      —        —    
Sales and marketing expenses    76    4,422    —        4,498  
General and administrative expenses    1,178    12,474    20,214   (e)    44,768  

   —      —      10,902   (e)    —    
Profit / (loss) from operations    (777)   1,917    (31,116)     (29,976) 
Other income / (expense)    —      —      —        —    
Interest expense, net    —      3    (5,170)  (e)    (5,167) 
Other expense, net    —      (34)   —        (34) 
Total other income / (expense)    —      (31)   (5,170)     (5,201) 
Profit / (loss) before income taxes    (777)   1,886    (36,286)     (35,177) 
Income taxes (benefit) / provision    (223)   191    (13,335)  (f)    (13,367) 
Net Income (Loss)   $ (554)  $ 1,695   $ (22,951)    $ (21,810) 
Loss per share:        
Basic and diluted   $ (0.08)   —      —       $ (0.75) 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:        
Basic and diluted

   6,597,155    —      22,496,250   
(a)
(b)    29,093,405  

 
(1) As IDI Holdings, LLC, the accounting acquirer of the merger consummated with IDI, Inc. (formerly known as Tiger Media, Inc.) effective as of

March 21, 2015, was incorporated on September 22, 2014, the figures for 2014 presented represent the period from September 22, 2014 (inception) to
December 31, 2014.
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA
CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
1. Basis of Presentation

The preceding Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements have been prepared by IDI based on the historical financial
statements of IDI and Fluent, to illustrate the effects of the proposed Acquisition. On November 16, 2015, IDI and Fluent entered into an Acquisition
Agreement. The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with (i) IDI’s historical consolidated
financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 which were filed on Form 10-Q on November 16, 2015 and for the period from
September 22, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014 and accompanying notes thereto, as filed as an exhibit to the Form 8-K/A, as filed with the SEC on
June 5, 2015; and (ii) Fluent’s historical financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and for the year ended December 31,
2014 and accompanying notes thereto attached to this filing (Exhibit 99.3). The effective date of the Acquisition between IDI and Fluent is assumed to be
September 30, 2015 for purposes of preparing the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet and January 1, 2014 for purposes of preparing
the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and for the period from
September 22, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014. The unaudited pro forma financial data is based on the historical financial statements of IDI and
Fluent, and on publicly available information and certain assumptions that IDI believes are reasonable, which are described in the notes to the Unaudited Pro
Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements included in this Proxy Statement.

 
2. Summary of Business Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements have been prepared in a manner consistent with the accounting policies adopted
by IDI. The accounting policies followed for financial reporting on a pro forma basis are the same as those disclosed in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements filed as an exhibit to IDI’s Form 8-K/A, as filed with the SEC on June 5, 2015. The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial
Statements do not assume any differences in accounting policies among IDI and Fluent. Upon consummation of the Acquisition, IDI will review the
accounting policies of Fluent to ensure conformity of such accounting policies to those of IDI and, as a result of that review, IDI may identify differences
among the accounting policies of the two companies, that when conformed, could have a material impact on the combined financial statements. At this time,
IDI is not aware of any difference that would have a material impact on the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

 
3. Preliminary Estimated Acquisition Consideration

On November 16, 2015, IDI and Fluent entered into a Merger Agreement and pursuant to which IDI will acquire Fluent by payment of cash and
issuance of capital shares. IDI is identified as the acquiring company for US GAAP accounting purposes. If the Merger is completed, Fluent stockholders will
be entitled to receive $100 million dollars, an aggregate of 300,000 Series-B non-voting convertible preferred shares, par value $0.0001, convertible into
15,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.0005, and an amount equal to the cash balance on the date of close. In addition to these, there are
approximately 3,500,000 restricted stock units and/or incentive stock options to be issued to Fluent’s employees or non-employees for their further services.
 

   Shares estimated to be issued 
Common stock    —    
Non-voting preferred stock    300,000  

   300,000  

The preliminary estimated acquisition consideration, currently based on the closing price of IDI’s common stock on November 16, 2015 of $10.33,
may change significantly if the trading price of IDI’s common stock fluctuates materially from the market value as of November 16, 2015. If the share price
were to change by 10%, or decrease to $7.13 (the average stock close price during the most recent 30 trading days prior to November 16, 2015), the impact to
total consideration and goodwill generated from the transaction would be as follows (in ‘000’s):
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10%
decrease in
the value of

IDI
common

stock    

Based on
$10.33 closing

price of IDI
common stock

at November 16,
2015    

10% increase
in the value of
IDI common

stock    

Based on $7.13
average closing

price of IDI
common stock

during most
recent 30 days.  

Total consideration   $ 246,877    $ 262,372    $ 277,867    $ 214,732  
Goodwill – excess of purchase price over identifiable assets

acquired and liabilities assumed.    148,992     164,487     179,982     116,487  

IDI will record the merger as a purchase of Fluent, using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with GAAP. Under the acquisition method
of accounting, as of effective time of the merger, the assets acquired, including the identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities assumed from Fluent will be
recorded at their respective fair values. Any excess of the purchase price for the Merger over the net fair value of Fluent identified assets and liabilities
assumed will be recorded as goodwill. The preliminary estimated acquisition consideration would be allocated as indicated in the table below.

IDI has not performed a detailed valuation analysis necessary to determine the fair market values of Fluent’s assets to be acquired and liabilities to be
assumed. Accordingly, the pro forma financial statements include only a preliminary allocations of the purchase price for certain assets and liabilities based
on assumptions and estimates. After the closing of the Merger, IDI will complete its valuations of the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed and determine the useful lives of the assets acquired. The adjustments to fair value and the other estimates, including amortization expense, reflected
in the accompanying Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements may be materially different from those reflected in IDI’s consolidated
financial statements subsequent to the merger.

 
4. Preliminary Pro Forma and Acquisition Accounting Adjustments
 

 (a) Reflects the consideration paid at closing to Fluent’s shareholders in IDI’s common stock.
 

Convertible preferred shares issued to Sellers as purchase consideration    300,000  
Conversion ratio    50:1  
Equivalent common shares    15,000,000  
Share price of common stock as of November 16, 2015   $ 10.33  
Purchase Price amount to be paid in shares   $154,950,000  

 

 (b) Reflects proceeds from preferred stock issuances and additional financing sources yet to be determined; proceeds used to fund acquisition of
Fluent by IDI and for future working capital.

 
Convertible preferred shares issued    149,925  
Conversion ratio    50:1  
Equivalent common shares    7,496,250  
Price per share paid   $ 6.67  
Proceeds received from convertible preferred shares issued   $50,000,000  
Additional financing   $24,500,000  

This information is presented for the purpose of providing pro forma financial information. The Company continues to pursue all available
sources of financing.

 

 
(c) Reflects estimated proceeds from issuance of Term loan; proceeds used to fund acquisition of Fluent by IDI. Term loan is expected to be for a

term of up to 5 years at prevailing market interest rates. The Company expects to close on the term loan simultaneous with the closing of the
acquisition of Fluent, Inc.

 

 (d) Reflects the elimination of Fluent’s historical equity capital.
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 (e) Reflects the pro forma income statement effect of the acquisition as if it occurred on January 1, 2014.
 

   2014    2015  
Amortization of acquired intangible assets    20,214     15,161  
Stock-based compensation expense    10,902     8,176  
Interest expense on acquisition debt    5,170     3,779  

The amortization of the acquired intangible assets is calculated using estimated useful lives ranging from 2-7 years

In connection with the Acquisition, IDI will be issuing restricted stock awards to certain IDI and Fluent employees which will vest over 3-4 years.
This pro forma adjustment reflects the amortization of these awards.

The interest expense reflects the term loan as noted in (c).
 

 
(f) The acquisition of Fluent, Inc. results in the recognition of deferred tax liabilities of approximately $48,000 related to amortizable intangible

assets. Because Fluent will be included in the Company’s consolidated tax return following the acquisition, the Company has determined that
the deferred tax liabilities related to the acquisition provide sufficient taxable income to realize a portion of the Company’s deferred tax assets.

This pro forma adjustment reflects the income tax benefit related to the combined pro forma pretax income during the year ended December 31,
2014 and the nine months ended September 30, 2015, based on expected effective income tax rate of 38%.

 

 (g) The following table reflects the initial purchase price allocation of Fluent, which is preliminary and subject to change (amounts in 000’s):
 

Consideration paid to Sellers:   
Issuance of Preferred Stock to Sellers    154,950  
Proceeds from issuance of acquisition debt paid to sellers    45,000  
Cash paid to Sellers    62,422  

Total purchase consideration    262,372  
Net Tangible Assets Acquired:   
Cash and cash equivalents    7,422  
Receivables, net    21,133  
Other current assets    1,717  
Property and equipment    574  
Intangible Assets:   

Customer List    10,000  
Trademarks and Tradenames    5,000  
Domain names    10,000  
Developed Technology    50,000  
Databases    50,000  
Non-Compete Agreements    2,000  

Other assets    271  
Accounts payable and expenses    (2,912) 
Other liabilities    (8,642) 
Deferred revenue    (208) 
Deferred income tax liabilities    (48,470) 

   97,885  
Goodwill    164,487  
Total purchase consideration    262,372  

 
 (h) Reflects estimated transaction costs.
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